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“Adopt-a-School Foundation  
is celebrating 15 years of service to South 
African schools. Together we have reached 
over 400 schools, impacting on the lives of 
over 900 thousand school children, their  

families and school communities. 
Thank you for your support.“

- Steven Lebere, Executive Director,  
Adopt-a-School Foundation
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Adopt-a-School Foundation (AAS) is a Southern African Public 

Benefit and Non-Profit Organisation which is committed to 

working with private, public and civil society partners to improve 

education delivery in South Africa’s rural and township schools. 

This Annual Report is Adopt-a-School Foundation’s commitment 

to accountable and transparent investment processes that 

are relevant and sustainable. It covers the period 1 July 2017 

to 30 June 2018. The financial statements have been audited 

by PriceWaterhouseCoopers. The reporting is inclusive of the 

work done through KST, of which Adopt-a-School Foundation 

is the implementing partner. The financial statements do not 

include the financial investment of KST, as this is managed 

independently through the KST Trust. KST produces its own 

annual report with its own audited financial statements which 

can be accessed via its website, www.kst.org.za.

AAS is an entity of the Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation (CRF). Other 

entities and projects of CRF include KST, Thari, Cyril Ramaphosa 

Education Trust (CRET) and Black Umbrella’s, each of which 

is dedicated to the upliftment of South Africans. CRF is an 

independent non-profit organisation which aims to foster the 

development of an inclusive and empowered society. 
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About this Annual Report



Our Vision
is for a dynamic, transformed and accessible schooling environment that produces capable 

global citizens to meet the developmental needs of Southern Africa.

Our Mission
is to support the delivery of an enhanced and conducive teaching and learning environment 

that can be replicated in disadvantaged schools.

Adopt-a-School Foundation is proud to present a new strategic positioning  

in the form of a new Vision, a new Mission and new Strategic Objectives. 

In an ever-changing environment, we are committed to staying at the forefront of 

education development in Southern Africa. We believe our new positioning will inspire 

Adopt-a-School Foundation to take Whole School Development to greater heights. 
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Our strategic objectives

Ensure delivery of quality and best value programmes 

for beneficiaries and stakeholders

Ensure effective programme implementation to 

support the improvement of education learning 

outcomes in schools

Establish and maintain a reputable, capable, 

innovative and dynamic organisation

Develop and maintain systems and policies to support 

transparency, accountability and good governance

Develop and maintain funding models that will 

ensure the long-term sustainability and optimal 

impact of our work



The National Development Plan Vision for Basic Education

In the year 2030, South Africans have education of the highest quality, giving 

them life-changing skills and knowledge. Education make people’s life chances 

more equal. It is the door to success: South Africans now earn more than their 

parents and grandparents.

A better educated population has boosted economic growth. This larger 

economy has space for more jobs, and has lifted more people out of poverty. 

Equality in education has also levelled out income inequality.

In 2030, South Africa enjoys an education system with:

•  High-quality, universal early childhood education

•  Quality school education, with globally competitive literacy and numeracy standards

•  Further and higher education and training that allows people to fulfil their potential

•  An expanding higher-education sector that boosts incomes and productivity, and 

shifts South Africa towards a knowledge-based economy

•  A wider system of innovation that links universities, science councils and 

independent research and development institutions with priority areas of the 

economy

* National Development Plan, National Planning Commission
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Meeting the vision of the National Development 
Plan for South Africa’s education system is 
intrinsically embedded in the vision and strategic 
goals of Adopt-a-School Foundation. Over the years, 
Adopt-a-School Foundation has contributed to 
improving the conditions of teaching and learning in 
South Africa’s marginalised schools. It has done this 
through mobilising effective partnerships between 
the public sector, the private sector and civil society. 
The impact of such collaborative efforts is evident in 
the statistics and stories reported on in this  
Annual Report.

Democratic South Africa has made much progress 
in expanding access to education. But inequality in 
education and its delivery, remains a reality in many 
parts of the country. Public-Private Partnerships 
play a central role in ensuring that no children are 
left behind due to poor quality education.  Whole 
School Development is Adopt-a-School Foundation’s 
holistic implementation model, which brings about 
sustainable change in school communities. At the 
heart of this model are our teachers and our pupils. 
It is through their experiences against which Adopt-
a-School Foundation measures its impact. 

Whole School Development is a robust and dynamic 
development model which is built around multi-
sectoral collaboration, community buy-in and active 
citizenship. Development is a continuously evolving 
process with unintended consequences and new 
challenges along the way. Through continuous 

learning and model-building, the Foundation 
has remained relevant and instructive in a highly 
challenging environment. 

I am immensely proud of the journey we have 
travelled with Adopt-a-School Foundation since 
its inception in 2002. From a simple call for a fax 
machine from a township school principal, the 
Foundation has grown to become a partner of 
choice in the corporate social investment space and 
is held in high regard by the Department of Basic 
Education and many civil society organisations.

I would like to thank the Board of Directors, for their 
unwavering support and dedicated service  
to Adopt-a-School Foundation.

We are grateful for the support of the many 
organisations and individuals who have stood by  
the Foundation. There is a lot of hard work ahead  
of us and I trust that you will continue to play an 
active role in improving the quality of education  
in our country.

President Cyril Ramaphosa

Chairperson, Adopt-a-School Foundation
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Executive Director's review

We envision a dynamic, transformed and 

accessible schooling environment that produces 

capable global citizens to meet the developmental 

needs of Southern Africa.

Since 2002 Adopt-a-School Foundation (AAS) 
has delivered on its mission to mobilise the 
private sector, organisations and individuals to 
support schools. Together with our partners, 
our vision for the creation and enhancement of 
conducive learning and teaching environments in 
disadvantaged schools has been realised in many 
schools across our country. 

It has become necessary for the Foundation to 
review our strategic position in order to ensure that 
we remain relevant and can make a lasting impact 
in an ever-changing environment. 

The Foundation has undergone an exciting exercise 
of revitalising our vision, mission and strategic 
objectives, which have become institutionalised in 
our daily work. We believe that our new goals, will 
inspire Adopt-a-School Foundation to reach new 
levels of impact and development. 

When we reflect on the past 15 years of operations, 
we are encouraged and motivated by the impact 
we have made. When Adopt-a-School Foundation 
issued its first Annual Report in 2006, it had invested 
around R1,9 million in the renovation and building 
of various school facilities in 12 rural and township 

schools, assisting just over 15 thousand children. 
Over the next decade, we built a robust, relevant 
and replicable development model, called Whole 
School Development (WSD), which has earned 
its stripes as a tried and tested model in the 
education landscape. Today, we have 209 schools 
under our adoption programme, which have been 
exposed to various degrees of WSD, totalling an 
investment of over R600 million. The model is 
endorsed by the Minister of Basic Education and 
her National Department continue to advocate for 
our growth and development. Through our Deputy 
Chairperson, Dr James Motlatsi, and our work in four 
schools in Lesotho, we have built a relationship with 
the Lesotho Ministry for Education. 

Perhaps even more significant, is the positive 
feedback from our existing private sector partners 
which reaffirms the value of our Whole School 
Development model. Our growing reputation 
as an effective implementing agent in the 
education space, has resulted in referrals and 
recommendations and, in this financial year alone, 
we have welcomed seven new companies as  
school adopters. 

One of AAS’s accolades in its short history, is the 
adaption of Whole School Development to KST’s 
District Whole School Development programme. 
Drawing on AAS’s experience and that of Kagiso 
Trust’s Beyers Naude School Development 
programme, Kagiso Trust and Cyril Ramaphosa 

Foundation established KST to implement Whole 
School Development at a district level. KST and its 
partnership with the Free State Department of Basic 
Education is one of the country’s biggest public-
private partnership in education and has been 
operating for five years in two districts in the  
Free State Province. 

This year, we have focused on the expansion of 
our social welfare initiatives and launched Thari, a 
programme for the support of women and children, 
funded by the Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation. 
This programme has resulted in Adopt-a-School 
Foundation employing more social workers and 
contributing to the social welfare environment 
through various stakeholder forums. 

To address a dire need in the communities in 
which we work (and a strategic priority within the 
National Development Plan), we have expanded our 
offerings to community development projects, such 
as Early Childhood Development centres. 

One of our most exciting new ventures is the 
establishment of an in-house leadership training 
programme, which will soon be a SETA-accredited 
course. Through this, we hope to expand the 
impact of our strategic planning and leadership 
development programmes, which has always been 
a fundamental part of Whole School Development.
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With our long-term school adoption partner, the 
Industrial Development Corporation, we have 
embarked on an ICT programme in several schools, 
exploring best practices in using technology to 
enhance teaching and learning experiences. We 
anticipate a significant improvement in academic 
performance in these schools and will continue 
to research methodologies, ensuring that we 
implement the most relevant solutions for  
our schools. 

Academic performance, in terms of the National 
Senior Certificate results, has improved, both 
nationally and within Adopt-a-School Foundation’s 
adopted schools. Adopt-a-School Foundation’s 
performance improved by 2% from 78% in 2016 
to 80% in 2017. This is a remarkable performance 
considering that we work in some of the most 
disadvantaged schools in South Africa. The quality 
of results in terms of learners that attained university 
and technikon passes has improved from 60.5% in 
2016 to 62.4% in 2017. 

I am also excited to announce an international 
chapter for Adopt-a-School Foundation, as we 
finalise our charity registration in the United 
Kingdom. This new venture into international waters 
will present new fundraising opportunities and 
enable our friends abroad to efficiently support the 
development of South African schools.  

Adopt-a-School Foundation has much to be proud 
of over the past 15 years and we are filled with 

new energy and inspiration as we look to the 
future. I would like to recognise the commitment 
of our growing staff component, who work with 
both professionalism and passion, to execute our 
objectives. On behalf of the team, we appreciate our 
Board of Directors, whose strategic guidance and 
enthusiasm encourage us in this work. 

Lastly, I would like to recognise the investment (both 
financial and other) of our funding partners.  It is 
your belief in education as a driver of change that 
inspires us to reach more schools, creating better 
opportunities for our children.

Steven Lebere

Executive Director,  
Adopt-a-School Foundation
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Governance Structure

Executive Committee

Oversees the operational work of the Foundation as directed by the Board of Directors.

HR,Remuneration and Nominations Committee

Provides guidance on all human resources and remuneration policy 
matters as well as nominations to the board.

Finance and Risk Committee

Reviews the principals, policies and practices adopted in preparation of the financial statements 
and ensures that the annual financial statements comply with statutory requirements. It also 

reviews management’s performance in relation to financial matters to ensure the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Foundation’s financial operational, compliance and risk management activities.

Strategy and Fundraising Committee

Facilitates the development of the organisational strategy, 
fundraising strategy and the implementation plans.
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Our Team
Adopt-a-School Foundation is fuelled by a passionate team, committed to using their skills and 

expertise to uplift South Africa’s marginalised schools. Their passion for community development, 

the provision of quality education and the protection of children is central to the successful 

implementation of Whole School Development.

Infrastructure Development

Our infrastructure team includes civil 
engineers, quantity surveyors and 

development practitioners.

 Executive Team

The Foundation is led by a competent 
executive team with diverse and 

extensive experience in education, 
corporate governance and 

development.  

Finance and  
Administration Team

Support services are provided by a 
team of bookkeepers, accountants and 

administrators.    

Monitoring and Evaluation Team

Our M&E team is skilled in research, 
impact assessment and analysis.

Curriculum and Social 
Development Team

Our Curriculum and Social 
Development team includes former 
teachers and school management, 

education and development 
practitioners and social workers.

Communications and 
Fundraising Team

The Communications and Fundraising 
team is a growing component of 

the Foundation and includes events 
managers, fundraisers and PR and 

communications practitioners. 

Our values

Innovation
We are creative and develop innovative 
solutions to enhance our impact in society.

Inspiration
We believe in the potential of our country 
and its people. We are committed to 
inspire others through our work.

Passion
We infuse passion and precision in 
everything we do.

Performance
We strive for excellence in our performance 
through team work.

Integrity
We are truthful, honest and respectful. We 
uphold the reputation of Adopt-a-School 
Foundation in everything that we do.



Impact in numbers

332 schools 
benefitted from strategic 
planning and leadership 

programmes

805 new school 
facilities built

930 155 
learners 

benefitted

8 430 temporary job 
opportunities created

1516 small 
community businesses 

supported

4 528 spectacles 
donated

1 140  hearings 
tests conducted

7 487 educators 
developed in key 
curriculum areas 87 029 

eyesight tests

449 

schools 

adopted

209 schools adopted 
primarily through private 

corporates and individuals

240 schools supported 
through KST
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2001 - 2004

R850 000
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our growth
Schools adopted

2002 2008 2012 2017

23 Schools
2002 - 2006

2006 2009 2013 2018

57 Schools
2008/2009

171 Schools
2012/2013

449 Schools
(including 240 through KST)

2017/2018

School children impacted

2001 - 2004: 3000

2008/2009: 45 271

2012/2013: 448 796

2017/2018: 930 155

Money invested
2008 / 2009

R28 million

2012 / 2013

R116 million

2017 / 2018

R 600 million



When you are in a friendly environment, you 
teach and learn better. We need healthy 

environments to have a healthy education.

– Marets-elisitsoe Moiloa, Educator, St Thomas Primary School, Morifi Village
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Strategic planning, leadership and governance
Investing in school leadership is at the heart of the 

Whole School Development (WSD) model. The successful 
implementation of WSD lies in creating a long-term sustainable 

and governable school through ensuring a well-developed, 
accountable and supportive leadership with an established and 

clear vision for the future of the school.

In the 2017/2018 Financial Year: 
2 Strategic Planning, Leadership and Governance programmes  

have taken place and, through KST, 31 Empowerment  
and Transformation Retreats have taken place.

Whole School Development

Infrastructure Development:
A key priority is ensuring that the school community is involved 

in the upkeep and improvement of their schools. The Foundation 
works with the School Governing Body (SGB) to identify skills and 
unskilled personnel from the local community – very often these 

are parents of the learners that attend the adopted school. A team 
leader is appointed from the local community to manage the 

workers on site. Adopt-a-School Foundation will oversee the project 
and transfer necessary skills to the team leader and temporary 

workers. Small community businesses are used for the procurement 
of materials and various services.

In the 2017/2018 Financial Year:

785 temporary jobs were created for the building of 52 new school facilities.
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Curriculum Development
Adopt-a-School Foundation conducts curriculum development 
programmes in gateway subjects, such as mathematics, science, 
accounting and geography, focusing on classroom-based support 
that prioritise the knowledge and confidence of the educator. 
Foundation phase learner support programmes in language, 
literacy, numeracy and mathematics are also critical to ensure that 
learners understand fundamental principles to success in their 
schooling career. The Foundation support extra-curricula and co-
curricula development programmes such as sports, environmental 
activities, leadership programmes and career days.

In the 2017/2018 Financial Year: 

2 133 educators have been developed in key curriculum areas.

Social Development 
The welfare and safety of school children is a growing concern 
and priority. Adopt-a-School Foundation has grown is social 
development offerings to include vision and hearing support 
programmes, health and sanitation initiatives and enabling access to 
home affairs services for ID books and Birth Certificates. In addition, 
the Foundation advocates for child protection through awareness 
campaigns to empower school communities and through speaking 
out in civil society to put pressure on authorities to provide better 
social services to our schools. 

In the 2017/2018 Financial Year: 

31 609 learners had their eyesight screened and tested, with  
899 learners receiving spectacles. 390 learners received audiology  
tests and over 8800 girls received sanitary pad donations.
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I really think that life begins when you go to 

school. I have seen improvements in my life, and 
in the lives of my sister’s and brother’s children, 

because of school. 

– Lebogang Delight Phosa, Matriculant, Modilati Secondary School.
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2017 Matric Performance

Adopt-a-School Foundation celebrates breaking the 

80% pass rate barrier in 2017 (for the first time since 

the introduction of CAPS in 2014). 62.4% of its learners 

achieved a bachelor or diploma pass.

Steady improvements over the years

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

*The 5% decline in performance between 2013 and 2014 is attributed to the introduction  
of the new CAPS curriculum. 

The quality of results remains a key success indicator

58,3%

57,9%

60,5%

62,4%

Bachelor/Diploma pass 2014

Bachelor/Diploma pass 2015

Bachelor/Diploma pass 2016

Bachelor/Diploma pass 2017

71,6%

73,3%
75,8%

82%

77% 77% 78%

80%



21

KST Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST) celebrates five years of partnership with the  

Free State Department of Education.

A brief history:

Beyers Naude Schools  

Development Programme

Adopt-a-School Foundation  

Whole School  

Development Programme

Free State District Whole School 

Development Programme

Kagiso Trust’s Beyers Naude Schools 
Development Programme model initially 
focused primarily on teambuilding retreats 
and leadership capacity building and only 
later integrated curriculum management and 
infrastructure improvement.

Adopt-a-School Foundation, an entity of 
the Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation, initially 
focused on infrastructure development in 
order to provide conducive environments 
for teaching and learning.  It later developed 
Whole School Development to address 
issues of leadership, curriculum and social 
welfare.

The collaboration was a natural progression 
for both organisations to contribute towards 
a more significant impact on the education 
system by integrating the best of both 
methodologies. Through this integration, 
the KST DWSD programme is poised to 
influence a broader systematic change in the 
education sector.

• In March 2013, Kagiso Trust and Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation sign an MOU and Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST) is  
officially established. KST enters into a partnership with the Free State Department of Education (FSDoE) to implement  
a district Whole School Development programme in the Free State’s Fezile Dabi and Motheo districts. Both Kagiso Trust and 
Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation committed R100 million to the project, with FSDoE matching the funding with a further  
R200 million investment.

• KST breaks ground for its first infrastructure projects. 174 schools take part in Retreats, 74 schools receive infrastructure 
projects and curriculum programmes are rolled out in 97 schools.

• 48 schools are phased into the programme and a further 29 schools receive infrastructure projects.

• KST launches its visual support programme and ICT integration programmes. 

• First Rand Empowerment Fund (FREF) commits to R100 million investment in KST, allowing for the extension  
of the District Whole School Development for a further three years.

2017 - 2018

2012 - 2013

2014 - 2015

2015 - 2016

2016 - 2017



This work is about showing 
children who come from 

really difficult situations that 
their reality is not all there 
is. It is about empowering 

a school to shine a light 
where there may be 

darkness, so that children 
can see other possibilities. 
It is about hope. The hope 

for a better future, through 
investing in the schools of 

today.

– Donné Nicol, CEO,  

Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation
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Whole School Development Case Study 1
Makhosana Manzini 

Secondary School

Makhosana Manzini Secondary 
School has embarked on a credible 
journey of transformation since its 
inception. Significant developments 
took place after 2012, following 
the school’s adoption by Industrial 
Development Corporation. These 
developments were fast-tracked by 
the investment made into the school 
and must be attributed to the strong 
school leadership and committed and 
supportive stakeholders. Adopt-a-
School Foundation’s philosophy is to 
empower schools by providing them 
with the tools to create conducive 
teaching and learning environments. 
It will always remain the responsibility 
of the school to sustain and build 
upon these tools, creating long-term 
sustainable solutions for the creation 
and enhancement of quality education. 
This case study shows how, through 
Whole School Development, Adopt-a-
School Foundation acts as an enabling 
force, empowering schools to become 
their own agents of change.

This is a summary of the original Case 

Study.  For the full version, visit the 

Adopt-a-School Foundation website.

Makhosana Manzini caters for over  
1 100 learners from Grade 8 – 12.  
41 educators are currently employed 
at the school. Learners travel from 
Hazyview, the Shabalala Village, the 
Mkhulhu Township, Belfast and Cork 
Village to attend the school. 

The school was established in 1994 
to relieve the overcrowding of a 
neighbouring high school, ML Nkuna. 
At inception, it had eight classrooms, 
catering for only Grade 8 and 9 learners, 
taught by educators from neighbouring 
primary schools. As it was an extension 
of ML Nkuna High School, it had none of 
its own resources. 

As the demand for teaching space grew, 
the community worked together to 
raise funds for more classrooms – which 
consisted of shacks and stock bricks. 
Despite difficult teaching conditions 
and fuelled by strong leadership and 
community involvement, Makhosana 
Manzini’s reputation for providing 
quality education grew. In 2012 
there were 1 148 learners enrolled in 
the school with a staff complement 
of 40 educators. With an average 
of 64 learners per classroom, and 
administrative facilities in the form 
of converted classrooms, teaching 
and learning became more and more 
compromised.

The School LRC was taken through 

a leadership training and personal 

empowerment programme

Ablution facilities were renovated  

and upgraded

Career guidance and personal 

empowerment programme. Construction 

of a new administration facility

Health, sanitation and Sexual  

Awareness programme

Renovations to the computer laboratory 

and implementation of an ICT 

development programme

Continuation of the ICT Programme

New Health, Sanitation and Sexual 

Awareness programme

The school’s leadership, management and 

educator body underwent a Strategic Planning 

Leadership and Governance Programme

Mathematics educator development and 

learner support programme. Science educator 

development and learner support programme

Mathematics and physical science learner 

supplementary programmes

Mathematics, physical science and geography 

learner supplementary programmes

Renovations to the Science laboratory  

and provision of resources

23



Strategic Planning

“The strategic planning programme helped us to 
build stronger teams at the school and because of it 

everyone understood their roles and responsibilities and 
assumed their responsibilities in a positive direction.” - Educator

“With the year programme in place, there is improved honouring of 
the timetable. Assessments are now being done in accordance with 
the pace setters. These are also verified through monthly reports on 

formal and informal class tasks and progress against pace  
setters is measured.” - Educator

“After their training, the LRC understood their roles and 
responsibilities better. They became more in control and became 

the bridge between learners and teachers. They also formed 
the environmental committee that assisted with the 
cleanliness of the school. They organised casual days 

for fundraising. The legacy has continued as the 
LRC empowered incoming members.”  

– Educator

Infrastructure
The construction of an 

administration block made two 
additional classrooms available for teaching

The renovations of the ablution facilities had 
dramatic impact on the hygiene in the school, 

which in turn, impacts on the dignity and pride of 
learners, ultimately improving learner discipline. 

Through temporary job creation and the use of 
local service providers in infrastructure projects, 

the development of the school has directly 
benefited the local economy, empowering 

the community and strengthening its 
sense of ownership of the school.

Curriculum 
Development

Since the implementation of WSD in 2013, 
the overall matric performance at the school has 

increased by 24.7%. The quality of performance has also 
significantly improved with 22% more learners in 2017 

achieving Bachelor or Diploma passes than in 2012. 

“Curriculum programmes have improved the results. The 
programmes helped us to better understand the content that 

we were struggling to teach the learners. We received past 
examination papers and lesson plans and so it became easy 

for us to do lesson preparation. The empowerment we 
received cascaded down to the learners. The learner 

supplementary programme is a good one as 
learners got videos, guides and memory cards 

for both Maths and Physical Science 
subjects.” – Educator

Social 
Development

Beyond academics, the school has taken ownership 
of the social needs of its learners. At estimated 100 

learners who come from child-headed households, are 
supported by the school with food parcels, often made up 

from the left overs of the school feeding scheme. The school 
sources school uniforms from various organisations for orphaned 

and vulnerable learners. 

The school actively engages with Adopt-a-School Foundation’s 
social worker to address any psycho-social needs of learners.

The issue of health and sanitation, specifically around 
menstruation for girl learners, is addressed through 

the Foundation’s health, sanitation and 
sexual awareness programme which 

provides sanitation pads. 24
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In 2016, Grade 10 learner, 
Thandiwe Mnisi was 
inspired by her mother to 
find a practical solution 
to her mothers concerns 
about her subsistence 
farm. She independently 
researched and invented 
a device to test the 
viability of soil for 
farming. Using solar 
energy, the device can 
be used by farmers to 
test the temperature, 
moisture and pH value 
(acidity and alkalinity) of 

the soil. She showcased her project at the Bohlabela Regional Science Expo 
in August 2016. Her project won in the ESKOM EXPO Special awards and 
that automatically qualified her to proceed to the International Science Fair 
(ISF). At the ISF in October 2016, Thandiwe’s project emerged in the top 
30 out of 560 projects from countries such as Mexico, Thailand, Swaziland, 
Zimbabwe, Kenya, Namibia and Botswana. Thandiwe was also afforded the 
opportunity to showcase her project in the USA, China or Thailand. 

The newly renovated and resourced laboratory, coupled with more confident 
and knowledgeable educators, able to teach through experiential learning has 
made an impact on the subject performance and helped to create a broader 
appreciation of science. The laboratory has become a hub for training workshops 
and expo’s in the area. Physical Science results have improved from 66.7% in 
2014 to 70.4% in 2016. In 2016, 15 learners participated in the Regional Science 
Expo, ten of which achieved gold and silver awards.

Makhosana Manzini has always been advanced in technology and has its 
own current and engaging website. The computer laboratory renovations 
was a strong addition to the school’s interest in ICT in education and the ICT 
programme is currently underway.

In 2016, the school’s debate team were top in their district and won third place 
in the province.

Visit the Makhosana Manzini 

Secondary School Website
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Motshegofadiwa Primary School, is one of the 
first schools adopted and has enjoyed different 
levels of support from Adopt-a-School Foundation 
through various corporate, private and volunteer 
investments. 

Motshegofadiwa Primary School is located in 
Hammanskraal, North of Tshwane in the community 
of Stinkwater. It caters for over 100 Grade R learners 
and a further 750 learners from Grade 1 to Grade 7.

School History

In 1975, the community of Stinkwater, put their 
resources together to build a primary school 
for their children. Some contributed financially 
and others contributed their time and hands 
to build two structures that would become the 
foundation of the Motshegofadiwa Primary School. 
These two structures are still standing and now 
house the Grade 2 and 3 learners and the school 
administration. The community slowly added to the 
school and over the next 21 years, Motshegofadiwa 
Primary School educated the children of Stinkwater 
from these facilities. By the early 2000’s there was 
still no running water and the school made use of 
the pit toilet system which posed many health risks 
to both teachers and learners. 

The Deputy Principal of the school was Banyana 
Mohajane, a young passionate educator driven to 
improve the teaching and learning conditions of her 
new school. Her tenacity and persistence to develop 

Mr Eric Makgale in the same 

classroom he attended as a 

Grade 2 pupil in 1976.

In 30 years, so 

much as changed. 

The biggest change I 

feel every day is the 

mood. Children are 

happy. Everybody wants 

to be here. And that is 

due to all the different 

interventions that have 

built this school into 

what it is today.”

her school resulted in Motshegofadiwa Primary 
School becoming one of the first schools to be 
adopted by the Foundation.

Since 2002, Adopt-a-School Foundation has enjoyed 
a long partnership with Motshegofadiwa with over 
ten companies investing in various elements of 
Whole School Development.

Whole School Development Case Study 2
Motshegofadiwa Primary School

Visit the Motshegofadiwa 

Primary School Website 
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The first official adopter of the school 
was Bank of America Merrill Lynch who 

immediately addressed the dire sanitation 
conditions through providing new ablution facilities, 

a new borehole, water pump and storage tanks. This 
relatively simple intervention would change the face of 

teaching and learning at the school, as overnight the dignity of 
its occupants was restored.

 Through the support of the then Department of Water Affairs, the school went through a 
process of sanitation and hygiene awareness on water conservation, toilet etiquette, care 

and maintenance of the toilets in order to sustain the longevity of the toilets. Thirteen 
years later, these toilets are still functional – a rare finding for school ablutions. The 

greatest challenge that continues to face the school is the quality of available water. 

In 2005, with each classroom housing no less 
than 60 learners, the school received a significant 

investment of eight new classrooms and a 

library. Solar panels were installed and a vegetable 

garden was established. The number of learners per 
classroom now averages 46. While this is still classified as 

overcrowding, conditions have significantly improved.

Adopt-a-School Foundation then aided in the transition from typewriters to more 
modern technology. Educators were trained and a computer laboratory was set up.

I joined the school in 1989. I can still recall that the school used shacks and 

mud classrooms. We had pit toilets and with time these toilets became full to 

the brim and the stench was just unbearable. We relied on the JoJo tanks that 

the municipality would come and refill. We also had to rely on the community 

neighbours for water. Many a times, the school had to close early because of lack 

of water and sanitation.

The mornings and winters were very cold. We used to make fire with corn in the 

classrooms. In summer, it would be hot in the classrooms so much that I would mark 

the learners’ books outside and call them one by one for feedback. These extreme 

weather conditions and the high rate of overcrowding resulted in both educators 

and learners being sick a lot of the time.

In 2011, AAS tested  
the eyesight of  

319 learners, providing 
spectacles to over 59 learners. 
The Bobs for Good Foundation 
visited the school to donate 
over 800 pairs of school shoes. 
While almost all the learners at 
the school are from impoverished 
backgrounds and live in poverty, there 
are currently over 150 learners who 
are orphans or identified as being 
particularly vulnerable. 

The Grade R facility built by AAS comprises 
of 3 classrooms, toilets, sick bay, kitchenette, 

storeroom, electricity, running water, jungle gym and play 
area. The Foundation’s skills development team visited the 
school to conduct in depth educator development for the 

Grade R practitioners. 

The Foundation also ran educator development programmes 
for the science and mathematics educators. Despite not 

having a Science laboratory for practical experiences, 
the new science kits provided a platform for experiential 
learning. The learners now compete in Mathematics and 

Science Olympiads and the DBE even organised for the 
school to run demonstrations on experiential learning for 

other educators from neighbouring schools. 
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The donation of a public phone shop 
provided temporary fundraising 

opportunities for the school. While 
this was an empowering donation, 

unfortunately, it was not sustainable. 

The combination court reinvigorated a 
love of sports, which were previously played 

in the dusty streets outside the school. Sports 
participation has increased and the school now 

competes at district and provincial levels. In 2016, the 
school athletics team came fourth in the National Schools 

Cross Country Competition. 

After having grown their skills 
development programme 
offerings, AAS returned to 

Motshegofadiwa with librarian 
training and resources to stock 

the facility they built previously 
and establish a more resourced and 

functional library. The library exposed 
the learners to a much richer world through 

a wide range of reading materials. Library corners 
have been set up in classrooms and the library 

system is functional. 

2010
-

2011

In 2016, the school 
leadership and 

management were taken on a weekend 
strategic planning session which 

included teambuilding, leadership 
training and strategy development. 

This leadership programme went beyond 
governance, management and planning. It 

made a sustainable investment in the moral of the 
school and the staff make an effort to plan regular team 

activities. The result is a warm and happy environment which creates a safe, 
secure space and encourages high performance.

The Foundation continues to 
advocate for support for this school 

in the rural and little-known town of 
Stinkwater. Mathematics and Science kits 

were recently donated and the library was 
stocked with more reading material.

A mini school website has been established for the 
school to use as their own marketing tool.

The Foundation is currently busy with the  
construction of a feeding scheme kitchen.
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Upgraded 

infrastructure

Safe ECD  

environment

Community  

Job Creation

School 

participation 

in district and 

provincial sports 

and co-curricula 

activities

Educator 

awareness of 

learner health and 

wellbeing (such as 

eyesight)

WSD Impact

Less 

overcrowding

Improvement 

in practical and 

experience-based 

learning

Access to clean 

drinking water 

and flushing 

ablutions

Improved

staff morale 

and 

teamwork



“It takes a nation to educate a child. And 
who makes up the nation? Community. 

That’s where it begins.” – Sydney Seolonyane,  

Founding Board Member, Adopt-a-School Foundation
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External Whole School Development 
Evaluation Summary
In early 2018, the Industrial Development 
Corporation (IDC) through Adopt-a-School 
Foundation commissioned Trialogue to conduct 
an impact assessment of the Whole School 
Development programme in 20 adopted high 
schools.  Adopt-a-School Foundation and IDC’s 
partnership has run over five years, and the 
assessment provided objective insight into the 
impact of the programme.  

Trialogue’s review of Whole School Development 
covered the key elements considered to contribute 
to overall school functionality as per the AAS model, 
as well as the elements considered vital by the DBE, 
the JET Systemic School Improvement Interventions 
in South Africa, BRIDGE Resource pack for school 
investments, and the Quality Learning Project led by 
Dr Stephen Taylor from JET. 

High level findings:

The overall AAS programme: 

• Is appreciated by the beneficiaries with 58% 
of respondents stating that they would “Do 
everything in your power to have it” if their school 
was not part of the adopt a school programme.  
A further 38% indicated that they would 
“encourage it”. 

• Improved the school’s functionality in each of its 
focus areas.

• 79% of principals, teachers and learners indicated 
an increase in school pride.

AAS objective 1: To facilitate excellent school 

management process with visionary leadership: 

• There was much anecdotal evidence that the 
leadership training, and strategic session had 
had a positive impact on the schools. Many had 
never attended this type of training or strategic 
planning before and found it very beneficial. 

• High ratings were given for the level of 
engagement that AAS had with the school 
stakeholders, especially leadership – a key 
component of good project design. Stakeholders 
also felt that the needs analysis identified and 
prioritised the needs they believed to be most 
important. 

AAS objective 2: To provide adequate, 

well maintained school infrastructure with 

appropriate resources utilised: 

• High ratings were given by respondents regarding 
the extent to which the infrastructure, teaching 
resources, and equipment provided by AAS met 
their expectations regarding quality. 

• Through the review process, no clear strategy 
regarding maintenance of infrastructure was 
identified.



“CSI Programmes in South Africa are becoming increasingly aligned to national and international frameworks such as the National 

Development Plan (NDP) and the Sustainable Development Goals (SGDs). Projects are being supported for longer periods with the 

goal of deriving measurable and sustained impact through investments made. This more considered investment approach is also 

characterised by long term partnerships as a means of embedding sustainability and ensuring holistic solutions. In line with this, 

the Adopt-a-School Foundation provides opportunities for individuals and corporates to invest in education effectively by adopting 

and supporting underprivileged schools with the aim of addressing the inequalities and inadequacies that plague South Africa’s 

rural and disadvantaged schools by enhancing their learning experiences and environments. – Trialogue Report for IDC, March 2018
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External Whole School Development 
AAS objective 3: To improve the levels of 

teaching expertise and achieve consistent high 

academic performance amongst learners: 

• 80% of survey respondents indicated that in their 
view, the matric average had a large increase as 
result of and attributable to the AAS interventions. 

AAS objective 4: To facilitate a safe school 

environment that is attentive to social well-

being of learners and enable an involved parent 

school community: 

• The learner wellbeing and community 
involvement aspect of the programme was only 
rolled out from 2015, and at six of the 20 schools 
and consisted of the Health, Sanitation and Sexual 
Education Programme. An improved rating in 
learner wellbeing and community involvement 
was noted between 2013 and 2017. 

• The infrastructure component of the AAS model 
uses local skilled and unskilled personnel from 
the surrounding community. AAS indicated that 
618 temporary job opportunities were created, 
and 319 small businesses supported through 
the delivery of the infrastructure projects at IDC 
sponsored schools. 

Impact Highlights:  Leadership and Management 

Impact Assessment: 

All schools rating the extent to which AAS has 
made an impact on the school’s leadership and 
management through their interventions above 
3 out of 4. The AAS leadership and management 
interventions imparted leadership skills and 
improved relationships and team work: “In terms 

of relationships and working together, there was 

a significant change compared to previous years 

where there used to be tension amongst each other”; 

“After workshops the teachers were so eager and 

enthusiastic, it was incredible, you could see such a 

remarkable difference”. 

Delegation skills and clarity on roles and 
responsibilities of the Principal, Deputies, and HOD 
were conveyed: “I came out more empowered as 

the roles became more defined, they made the 

demarcation of the roles more clear to me.” 

 
Key challenges identified 

• Ongoing training is required due to staff turnover 
and new SGB enrolement every three years.

Impact Highlights:  Learner Wellbeing  

and Community Involvement

70% of the schools indicated that learner wellbeing 
and community involvement had improved between 
2013 and 2017. The following reasons were given: 

• Adopt-a-School Foundation’s Health, Sanitation 
and Sexual Education Programme which resulted 
in decreased absenteeism due to the provision of 
sanitary towels and a decline in pregnancy rates.

• Visits and mentorship from AAS staff which 
improved learner confidence and manners. 

• The training for the Learner Representative 
Council (LRC) which helped to improve overall 
learner discipline. 

• The engagement facilitated through the AAS 
programme highlighted issues that the schools 
were previously unaware of. The schools could 
then intervene where needed. For example, when 
issuing sanitary pads and school shoes to learners, 
“we asked questions which highlighted that 
learners needed to sanitary pads for sisters and 
when asked why new shoes weren't being worn, 
we found that they had been given to siblings 
who had no school shoes.” 
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Audiology Pilot Programme

In 2017, Adopt-a-School Foundation launched a 
pilot programme to test the speech and hearing of 
primary school learners as an extension to its visual 
support programme. The pilot has been a great 
success and a number of critical challenges have 
been identified.

Pilot:  Phakamani Primary School

       learners were identified with hearing 
impairments and received the required hearing aids.

Programme Highlights
Addressing issues of welfare and morality 

in adopted schools

Adopt-a-School Foundation’s Moral Regeneration 
programme aims to support schools located in areas 
characterised by high levels of unemployment, 
poverty, substance abuse, domestic abuse and 
gang-related violence. The primary aim of the 
programme is to encourage learners to actively 
participate in the moral regeneration of their 
school, and facilitate collaboration between parents, 
teachers and relevant community stakeholders.

Youth workers are placed in schools to provide 
psychosocial support to vulnerable learners and 
facilitate dialogues around some of the destructive 
issues affecting the schools. 

In 2017/2018 the programme was introduced to two 
schools and individual psychosocial support services 
has been offered to 15 vulnerable learners with over 
270 learners engaging in dialogue sessions that 
address peer pressure, substance abuse, violence, 
personal growth and leadership. 

Child Protection Week 

Adopt-a-School Foundation uses Child Protection 
Week as a platform to engage with local 
communities and raise awareness around children’s 
rights and access to social services. 

The Foundation's awareness programmes are 
designed to place responsibility on the learner - 
empowering them to lead their own awareness 
campaigns and dialogues on the rights of 
children and how to keep children safe in their 
communities. Another important objective of these 
sessions is the establishment and development 
of partnerships between other NGO's and Human 
Rights Organisations, Government Departments and 
Community Organisations. 

While it is invaluable to have a week dedicated 
to child protection to create the much-needed 
awareness for crimes against children in our 
communities, the subject is on Adopt-a-School 
Foundation's agenda throughout the year. 

17  

"I believe that it is the responsibility of every member 

of a community to take action against the ongoing 

abuse of women and children.  We need to understand 

that these incidences do not only affect the victim, but 

they influence the many social relationships within the 

community, such as those between children, parents 

and teachers, which, in turn, has a deep and lasting 

impact on social dynamics in society.

– Bernice Maponyane

Social Worker and Programme Manager, 

Adopt-a-School Foundation

View our CPW 

activities here. 
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Child and Youth Care Workers (CYCW) 

employed and trained

THARI Programme for the Support of 

Women and Children 

Adopt-a-School Foundation is the implementing 
agent of Thari, a programme for the support 
of women and children, launched by the Cyril 
Ramaphosa Foundation in September 2017. The 
programme is aimed at providing psychosocial 
support services and safe spaces at schools for 
vulnerable children, youths and women and brings 
together multiple stakeholders in the community, in 
an effort to build awareness and education around 
abuse, ensuring that signs of abuse and trauma can 
be identified and addressed. The programme has 
been implemented in Botshabelo, Free State and 
Diepsloot, Gauteng. 

Child Safety in Schools 

“How are we to achieve our potential as a country, 

when our own children face sexual violation 

and abuse at school – the places where they are 

supposed to be protected and nurtured, by the 

people we have entrusted with their safety. The 

prevalence of this crime in schools is robbing 

our children of their youth, and the country of 

its future.” – Steven Lebere, Executive Director, 

Adopt-a-School Foundation.

Violence is endemic in our society and the violation 
of children’s basic right to protection from abuse  
is a national crisis. 

School is very often the first place where issues of 
neglect or abuse are identified. Adopt-a-School 
Foundation believes it has an important role to play 
in ensuring educators and learners are equipped 
with the knowledge to handle such issues and 
ensure the correct action is taken as quickly  
as possible. 

Secondary School Learners

Thari is a Setswana word 
meaning a traditional blanket 
specifically used to carry and 
cover a child. It can also be 
referred to as the amniotic sac 
that protects a baby. 

942  

670  

2 328  

2 

16  

children and their families reached 

through psycho-social support initiatives

children reached through the Safe Park

school children reached through 

awareness campaigns and dialogues

Multisectoral forums established with 

106 stakeholders engaged

*The National School Violence Study of 2012 
(Patrick Burton and Lezanne Leoschut),

4,5%    have been robbed

12,2%   have been victims of threats of violence

6,3%   have been assaulted

4,7%    have been sexually assaulted
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Environmental solutions for social 

challenges

A new, environmentally-friendly waste management 
system has been put in place in the Tsakani Primary 
School's Feeding Scheme Kitchen. In partnership 
with the Eco-Culture Sechaba Foundation, Adopt-
a-School Foundation has set up a Biogas system, 
which reduces the carbon footprint of the school by 
reducing the omissions of carbon dioxide, methane 
gas and sulphur dioxide into the air. Not only does 
it have a positive impact on the environment, but 
it means the school can now generate it's own 
cooking gas. The system is simple to use. Kitchen 
staff place food waste into the macerator which 
enters an EZ Gas digester to turn the food waste into 
methane gas. The gas is channelled and piped into 
a gas stove in the kitchen.  The system produces a 
by-product of an organic fertilizer high in nutrients, 
which is used to feed the school's vegetable garden.
Ten staff members have been trained in using this 
system and, to date, the school's feeding scheme 
has relied 100% on the gas produced by the system 
which will have a significant saving on its monthly 
electricity bill.

Kanana ECD Centre
The first one thousand days in a child’s life are critical 
to unlocking and igniting lifelong potential, interests 
and abilities. The National Integrated Early Childhood 
Development (ECD) Policy aims to address critical 
gaps and ensure the provision of a comprehensive, 
accessible and equitable ECD services.

The Kanana ECD centre was built to mitigate the 
high levels of TB in the local community, which 
is mediated by overcrowding, poorly ventilated 
housing and malnutrition.  The new centre will 
ensure that the children of Kanana will not only 
have access to safe, hygienic and spacious facilities, 
but that their educators will be developed in new 
teaching methodologies, resource management and 
school leadership and governance.

“The facilities built by Adopt-a-School are not just 

about infrastructure. It’s about what colours are 

good for children, what resources are needed, 

the health and sanitation aspects. It’s about the 

holistic outcome for the children that will use 

the facilities. “ – Nikki Griffiths, Chief Operating 

Officer, Tshikululu Social Investments

Building Highlights

Temporary 

Jobs Created

70

ECD 

Practitioners 

trained

4

Children 

directly 

supported

130
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Science laboratory at Phagamang Secondary 

School, Limpopo A new Grade R facility at Fortune Kunene Primary School, Gauteng

New schools replace previous mud structures in KwaZulu-Natal

Science Laboratory, Phagamang Secondary 

School, Limpopo.  Read more.



collaboration for change
Back to School Party 2017

Reach for the Stars
On 14 October 2017, Adopt-a-School Foundation hosted its 11th Back to School Party. Celebrations were themed around science, technology and the future. Guests were 
invited to take a tour of adopted schools using virtual reality technology, young Masters of Ceremony performed exciting science experiments on stage, and the décor was 
made up of science apparatus which was donated back to school science labs. Against this background, the Foundation was able to create awareness of the critical need for 
mathematics and science development in rural and township schools. Over R4.8 million was raised and guests pledged towards the provision of a new science laboratory 
for Modilati Secondary School. 
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Back to School for a Day: Collective
Adopt-a-School Foundation hosted a collective volunteer initiative at Tshilidzi 
Primary School in Chiawelo, Soweto, as part of its 2018 Back to School for a Day 
on Mandela Day initiative. This event saw over 300 volunteers visiting the school 
on the day to provide hands-on assistance to the school.  

Adopt-a-School Foundation would like to thank all those who supported this 
initiative, including: ABC Management, BMW, Brainwaves, Cell C, Croxley, Cyril 
Ramaphosa Foundation, Cyril Ramaphosa Education Trust, Dot Good, EcoCulture, 
Fever Tree Consulting SA, Julius Kgale, KST, McDonalds, Moroka SAPS, Moroka 
CPF, Moroka Youthdesk, Ntaba Nyoni Estates, Phembani, Prettify your Township, 
Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo, Tamaryn Green, Touch Rugby Sundays, Toyota Tsusho 
Africa, Triviron and of course our wonderful hosts Tshilidzi Primary School.

Activities were based on the needs of the school and included:

• Touch Rugby clinics, with players form the Lion’s rugby team and provision  
of all resources needed to start a Touch Rugby team at the school.

• Painting illustrations inside the Grade R classroom, with four themes: 
Mathematics, Literacy, Fantasy and Blocks.

• Motivational talks by Tamaryn Green (Miss SA) and Julius Kgale 
(Skeem Saam)

• Big Books activity by Croxley and donation of stationery.

• Donation of equipment for the school football team.

• Safety talks by the Moroka SAPS, CPF and Youthdesk.

• Development of the school vegetable garden to support the school feeding scheme.

• Creation of legacy books with learners.

• Repair works to the school’s sport combination court.

• Provision of meals and drinks for all learners, sponsored by McDonalds.

• Donation of blankets to all Grade R learners.

• Painting the school sign. 1 School Companies24 School children300

See more by 

clicking here
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Corporate Volunteer Days

VWSA Show of Hands

Volkswagen South Africa partnered with 
Adopt-a-School Foundation for their annual 
Great Show of Hands initiative at Tshilidzi 

Primary School in Tshiawelo, Soweto. 
VWSA employees together with their loved 
ones gave their support and time to make a 
difference in a school that serves more than 
580 learners. The work done at the school 
includes: Grade R makeover – improving the 
quality of teaching and learning conditions for 
80 – 100 Grade R learners; rehabilitating two 
vegetable tunnels and installing a rainwater 
catchment system in the vegetable garden 
and packing 20 000 meals for orphaned and 
vulnerable children and some directed to 200 
orphaned and vulnerable children at Tshilidzi 
Primary School and over 300 learners in 5 local 
day care learning centres. VWSA’s investment 
into Tshilidzi exceeded R300 000 and has 
made a significant impact on the 598 learners, 
their families and the greater community.

Peter Hindle visits his adopted schools
On 02 July 2018, Peter Hindle MBE hosted the third 
annual Golf Day at Lytham St Annes in support 
of projects at Tsakani Primary School in Kagiso, 
Gauteng. 

Through the funds raised at the 2017 Golf Day, the 
Foundation was able to implement a number of 
projects including:

• Provision of a biogas generator to supply free gas 
to the feeding scheme kitchen, including training 
on use and maintenance.

• A recycling programme at the school, linked to a 
local buy-back centre to generate funds for the 
school, and reduce waste and pollution.

• Eyesight testing of 600 learners, and provision of 
spectacles to those learners who need them.

Earlier in the year, Peter Hindle MBE visited Tsakani 
Primary School to be part of the handover of 
spectacles to learners, and engage with the school 
on future needs.
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Volunteer Days

Flight Centre Foundation Flight Centre Foundation 
has hosted two volunteer days at their adopted 
school, Qhobosheane Primary School, in Soweto. 
All the broken and missing window panes were 
fixed, non-perishable food parcels were donated 
to orphans and vulnerable learners and classrooms 
were painted and more classrooms before the end 
of the year.

Lesedi Power Project donated 
school shoes to all of the 100 
orphans and vulnerable children 
attending the school on 30 July 2018. 
The shoes were manufactured by 
Barefoot No More, for each learner 
specifically and are long-lasting, light 
weight school shoes.

Saint-Gobain had a month-long volunteer campaign 
at all of their adopted schools as well as Hlahlindlela 
Secondary School. They were involved in the  
following activities:

o Sonwabo Primary School: Renovations to the  
girls, boys and educators’ ablution facilities.  
Donation of water stockpiles, to alleviate the  
effects of the draught.

o Motshegofadiwa Primary School: Fixing classroom 
roofs and replacing ceiling boards and installing new 
chalkboards in 19 classrooms.

o Hlanhlindlela Secondary School: Refurbishment 
of one classroom, including: painting, ceilings, floors 
and the fixing of all broken window panes and frames 
as well as replacing the door. Introduction of a paper 
recycling system linked to a local buy-back centre. 
Volunteers also provided snacks and drinks to all 
learners on their volunteer day.

o Mvelaphanda Primary School: Sanding and 
varnishing all the school desks, painting, fixing 
walkways, installing new ceiling boards (with 
insulation) and prettifying classrooms.



partner with us
Our extensive experience gives us a comprehensive understanding 

of the needs of schools and their dynamic contexts.

We work with integrity and accountability and deliver  

sustainable change to communities and schools.

We adopt schools and build 
sustainable long-term 

relationships with them

We have a comprehensive 
and holistic approach to 

development

We are model-builders

We are excellent at community  
engagement and advocacy

We are strong in collaboration  
and facilitation

Meeting the Codes of Good Practice

Adopt-a-School Foundation is a Social 

Economic Development initiative that 

promotes sustainable access to the economy 

through the support of schools. The 

Foundation’s percentage of Black South 

African beneficiaries (as defined in the Codes 

of Good Practice) is over 75%. This means that 

the full value of any donation made to Adopt-

a-School Foundation will be recognised. 

5%

1%

100%

of the B-BBEE Scorecard is weighed 

on the Social Economic Development 

(SED) spend of a company

of a company’s net profit after tax 

(NPAT) must be spent on SED in order 

to receive the full 5% weighing

of the 5% weighting can be realised  

by channeling the 1% NPAT to  

Adopt-a-School Foundation

We are a learning and 

adaptable organisation
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individual giving
Sustainable giving: Sign up to become a monthly 
donor to support the ongoing work of Adopt-
a-School Foundation. By donating each month, 
individuals are able to make a meaningful and 
sustainable impact on the fundraising efforts of 
the Foundation. Monthly donations allow the 
Foundation the flexibility of addressing urgent  
needs as soon as they arise.

http://www.adoptaschool.org.za/donate/

Pledge a Special Occasion: Celebrate and pledge 
your birthday to Adopt-a-School Foundation. 
Request that loved ones make a donation instead 
of gifts this year. By starting a campaign with us 
to celebrate your special milestone, you can help 
us improve education for thousands of young and 
hopeful learners.

Go on an adventure: Tackling your bucket list 
by going on an adventure can be made even 
more meaningful by supporting Adopt-a-School 
Foundation. Embarking on an adventure such as 
climbing a mountain, rafting down rapids, running 
a marathon, or cycling cross country for a cause can 
greatly contribute to the work of the Foundation. 
Add a little extra inspiration to your adventure!

Back to School wish list:

Donations in kind are welcome. Our schools often 
need the following items:

• Uniforms

• Stationery

• Calculators and Maths sets

• School-appropriate library books

• Photocopying machines, printers and other 

office equipment

• Educational toys for Grade R facilities

MySchool card:

Apply for your MySchool card and nominate Adopt-
a-School as your beneficiary. Every time you spend 
and swipe at a participating store, a percentage of 
sales will be donated to us on your behalf at no cost 
to you. Every swipe counts!

www.adoptaschool.org.za/myschool 
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adopt or assist a school
• For a school to be eligible for adoption we 

require demonstrable evidence of the acute 
needs of the school. We then ascertain the 
willingness on the part of the school governing 
body, educators, parents, and learners to 
participate actively and accept responsibility  
for the project.

• The Foundation will conduct a high-level 
due diligence and comprehensive needs 
analysis at the identified school and present 
a project proposal to the funder. An adoption 
agreement is entered into between the school, 
the adopter/s, and the Foundation.

• The Foundation is committed to using local 
small businesses during the infrastructure 
development phases of the project and to 
empowering the local community by creating 
temporary job opportunities.

• The Foundation coordinates and monitors 
the services offered by best practice NGOs 
to ensure school development objectives 
are met. The Foundation assists the school 
community to gain access to government 
services such as social grants, feeding schemes, 
and Home Affairs.

Alternatively,

Adopt-a-School Foundation has a database 
of schools with specific needs which you can 
support. Through collaborative interventions we 
can increase the impact we make in the schools 
where we work.

What your donations can achieve 

• Sanitary pads

• Sports equipment

• School uniforms

• Vegetable gardens

• Eyesight tests and spectacles

• Library books

• Educator development

• Leadership development

• Classrooms and libraries

• Feeding scheme kitchens

• Science laboratories

• Ablution facilities

R2 000 – R12 000

R12 000 – R120 000

R120 000 – R500 000+
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Teaching is not 
just a career to me. 
There are children 

who need my 

support. Who need 
me to take care of 

them. Who need me 
to mentor them 

and guide them, to 
help them achieve 
their dreams. So as 

a teacher, I have to 

play a role – to go 

further. 

– Koliwe Glorius Nkuna, 

educator, Phakamani Primary 

School
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essay competition
Foundation Phase WINNER
Name: Thatatsi Ntombifuthi 

Grade: 3 

School: Olifantsvlei Primary School

TREES ARE OUR BEST FRIENDS

When days are dark friends are few but my tree is 
always there for me. Ever one needs a shoulder to 
cry on when they are not feeling well and my tree. 
Even on a hot sunny day you need a shadow to hide 
in and my shadow is the tree.

Every day when I come from school and in weekends 
I spend some time under my peach tree. Sitting 
under my tree gives me time to be myself, relax 
and also to meditate. Whenever I am sitting in 
the shadow of my tree I relax myself by taking out 
everything that is in my chest.

Foundation Phase: 1st Runner Up
Name: Mosoa Rethabile 

Grade: 3

School: Nelson Mandela Primary School

MY FAVOURITE TEACHER

My favourite teacher is ma’am Tshabalala. I like her 
because she likes to give us good lessons every day. 
She does not like leaners to sit in the classroom, 
without reading, writing and doing math. She 
makes sure that each leaner has reading and writing 
material. Best of all she loves and fell us to be serious 
about our studies. That is why I love her so much.

Mrs Tshabalala tells children to love respect and care 
for one another. I love her because she keeps us in 
the playground - she has energy, shows us what 
to do outside. She is my role model and she is very 
lovely and beautiful.

Mrs Tshabalala likes to tell us stories that are real 
and encourage us to study our books so that we can 
have wisdom and understanding young children and 
tell them to love education as is the way to bright 
life and future success.

She does not like children who to do not do their 
homework and study their books. She tells us that 
when we are lazy to do our school work we are 
going to suffer and not going to have money as 
we would have wasted our time and studies she 
reminds us time is money you will not be able to 
look after you family and have money to build them 
a house.

She says we must love our parents and community, 
proud by studying hard and be responsible to look 
after our community. She likes showing us her 
graduation pictures, and tells us she want to see us 
wearing those clothes, being on stage one day when 
we finish our matric and secondary  
school education.

I am very thankful and very proud of her because 
I am able to read, write, count and study in both 
Sesotho and English. It shows my future is already 
shining because of her.

I talk to my tree about anything and everything I 
even cry for my tree imagine if it could talk. I trust 
my tree is the best thing in my life I even hug it I 
love my tree a lot. I do have friends but I don’t trust 
them in the someway as I trust my tree.

Guess what my tree has a name. The name of my 
tree is Joy and she is a girl. Even I play with my toys 
under Joy. As now it is winter I felt sad because Joy 
loses all her beautiful leaves and her shadow I wish 
I can put her inside my house so that she will be 
warm and beautiful again.

I wish everyone can find themselves a tree to talk to 
other than trusting a person.
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Foundation Phase: 2nd Runner Up
Nkhatho Kutloano 

Grade: 3 

School: Reaitumela Primary School

MY FAVOURITE TEACHER

As I walk through the gate of my school, I feel happy 
because I am going to meet my second mother. 
Even if I came to school hurt or sad, I get the joy of 
knowing that I am going to be comforted by my 
second mom.

My favourite teacher is Me Maimane. She teaches 
Mathematics, English, Sesotho and Life Skills. 
It is because of her that I get high marks in all 
the subjects. She is my number one because I 
was struggling with Sesotho and Mathematics 
but she makes sure that I understand Sesotho, 
during listening and speaking I find it easy to 
speak whatever I want to talk about. She does not 
complain if to talk about anything that is relevant 

so that we can be able to talk. In Mathematics I can 
solve problems and work on my own without any 
help. You will love her more when teaching sharing 
she will go up and down sharing and making us 
aware that it is important to share, not only in maths 
but also with the children who are ready.

Me Maimane did not give up on us. She teaches 
everything with love, respect and makes school a fun 
place to be at. She is best teacher any kid will love 
to have. She is easy to talk to. She is my favourite 
because today I can read, write and calculate on  
my own.

Me Maimane is a mother to us and does not like 
children who are not like children who are not 
listenining. She encourages us to be disciplined and 
likes to keep the class and our books clean.

She is my role model when it comes to education. 
Today I am proud of myself because of her. Now I 
can solve problems and work on my own without 
any help. She gives us chance to enter competition 
like mental maths and this one.

I love her to bits.

THANK YOU.

Intermediate Phase: WINNER
Name: Leticia Olwethu 

Grade 6 

School: Sizimisele Primary School

THE HAPPIEST DAY OF MY LIFE

My name is Leticia and my surname is Mahlalela. I 
am a grade 6(six) learner and I am eleven years old.  
I would like to tell you about the happiest day of my 
life. One day our kind principal told us that we are 
going out for a trip from grade 4-7. We were visiting 
Pretoria Zoo. I was very happy I just ran home to tell 
my mother about the trip. I was very lucky because 
my mother agree to pay the trip for me.

The principal told us that the trip only cost R400 
including food, transport and entrance fee to the 
Zoo. Our transport was very special, it’s called 
Pro Tours. The colour of the bus was white with 
comfortable chairs and beautiful blue curtains. Inside 
the bus there were also a big screen TV and a fridge. 
They told us to wear red T-shirts and Jeans so we 
can all have the same colour so we won’t get lost in 
the Zoo. I was so excited that I couldn’t even sleep 
because I thought the bus will leave without me.

Then I stayed all night till 12am. I just went to take 
a bath. I wear my clothes and I took my bag and 
went to school it was a sunny day and the air was 
breezing like the cooing of a dove. When I got to 
school there were many people and I couldn’t see 
my friend. Then we went to the assembly to sing 
and pray for a safety trip. They gave us some green 
ribbons. We waited and waited for the bus to come 
and finally it did.
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Then the bus came and we were all shouting, 
screaming and dancing when we saw the bus 
coming. The teacher called our names and if they 
call you name you got inside the bus and took a 
sit Then we were on our way and it was like an 
adventure and it was the first trip in my life. We saw 
many places on our way and we passed a tollgate 
and I wondered what was it and my teacher told me 
it was a tollgate. We went to the garage to pee then 
we were on our way again.

There was music in the bus and we were all dancing 
and having fun. Inside the bus yooh!! It was exciting. 
I was so surprised when I saw Mrs Dube dancing 
then I laughed and laughed till tears fall down. When 
we get to the zoo it was just unbelievable.

We saw many different kinds of animals like rhinos, 
zebras, Tigers, lions, crocodiles and big elephants. 
We played many games like big wheel. It’s ticket only 
cost R4 and there was also a cable mountain. We 
ate delicious meat and pap then we had some juice. 
When we went back home it was dark outside and 
I was so happy that I was able to learn about lots of 
different kind of animals and I really had some fun.

Intermediate Phase: 1st Runner Up
Name: Molokong Motloung 

Grade 5

School: Olifantsvlei Primary School

WHAT I WANT TO BE WHEN I GROW UP

My name is Molokong Motloung I am 11 years old. 
I am doing grade 5 at Olifantsvlei Primary School. 
When I grow up I want to be an engineer. I will have 
to study mathematics and science because mostly 
engineering is all about calculations. I love this and 
I’ll do well so this career is ideal and I am going to 
study them so that I can be an engineer.

I’d like to give back to disadvantaged kids who want 
to study and follow their passion and dreams like 
me. This profession will be good for me because I 
want to create job opportunities for people who are 
not working and have qualifications. I want to bring 
growth to South Africa.

I want to study in Stellenbosch in Cape Town 
because I won’t know anyone who will distract me. 
I will be far away from my friends and family so I will 
be able to concentrate and finish my studies and get 
the qualification that I want.

I will study for six years at the university then 
after those years I will finish my other year doing 
practical’s so that when I get my qualification I 
will be able to create my own company and job 
opportunities. In my country there is a lack of jobs, 
lots of people are not working so I must work really 
hard on my career so that it can be a success and I’ll 
be able to help other people with jobs. 

I also want to be an example to other students so 
that they can also study hard so they can be more 
business orientated people like me. I want to make 
my teachers proud when I leave school so that  
they can also remember me as a good student at 
their school.

I also want to build the largest children’s 
development centre in South Africa at Western Cape 
for children to read books, do their homework and 
play sports. I want to do this because it will help 
children reach their goals, so that they can have 
expensive cars, big houses and companies.

Intermediate Phase: 2nd Runner Up
Name: Tumelo Mokokobetsi 

Grade: 5

School: Igugulethu Middle School

TREES ARE OUR BEST FRIENDS 

Trees are the best thing in our lives. They are useful 
plants that we have in the world. Here in Sasolburg 
we are surrounded by lots of industrial firms which 
pollutes our environment a lot. So the trees we are 
having in our area are useful because they give us 
oxygen which help us breath clean air.
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Every tree has only one stem. Many trees grow from 
the ground. Trees have green leaves and green fruits. 
Trees make food on their own which means they 
make like peaches, apple, banana and many more. 
We receive oxygen from trees.

Oxygen is a colourless gas that comes from every 
tree. Oxygen forms about 20 percent of the 
earth’s atmosphere. Carbon dioxide is a colourless 
odourless produced by burning carbon and organic 
compounds, it is colourless but we can be harmful.
Carbon dioxide is naturally present in the air and 
it is absorbed by plants in photosynthesis. In my 
own understanding carbon dioxide is a dangerous 
chemical that makes us sick. Including animals. Trees 
are our best friend and it is our duty to take care  
of them.

When it is winter it they help us by providing us with 
logs, so that we can make fire, when it is very cold. 
When it is summer it helps us by providing us with 
shade. Trees helps us when it comes to air pollution. 

It helps by reducing the carbon dioxide that comes 
from industrial firms, vehicles and heavy machines 
their roots hold the soil together to prevent dryness 
and allow us to plant. Trees are a home for many 
animals and offer them cool shade during summer.

Trees protect us from lot of wind they also add to 
the natural beauty. Trees play an important role in 
our lives. In most provinces’ tree planting provides 
the opportunity for employment where hundreds of 
people work as farm- workers, more especially in the 
plant segment they pick and gather fruits.

All cultures ages and genders have an important 
role to play at a tree planting or tree care event 
will make trees safe. Trees as landmarks can give 
neighbourhood a new identity and encourage.  
At school we have many trees that surround us.

 That means we get enough oxygen and these trees 
play major role in helping to reduce noise pollution. 
When it comes to cutting the trees, we don’t have 
to cut them completely they help us a lot. We have 
books and we can produce exam papers because of 
trees. Without trees there would be lots of carbon 
dioxide in the environment and we would not be 
having things such as furniture, logs to make fire etc.

GET Phase: WINNER
Name: Morallane keitumetse 

Grade 7, 

Dibaseholo Primary School

MY EXPERIENCE WITH PEER PRESSURE 

What is peer pressure? To me it means that it 
is when your friends try to persuade you to do 
something against your will or encourage you to 
change so that you are more like them.

I have experienced peer pressure many times in 
my life before and to tell you the truth it was not 
good at all. Why this was because I had friends 
who were not good for me. And to say they were 
not good for me at all they never cared about their 
studies, all they could do was to smoke and drink 
which was something they also wanted me to do. 
But because I disagree with something that is very 
wrong, they made conditions which are. It is either 

us or your studies? And I said to them I will give you 
guys an answer by tomorrow. I never even slept a 
wink at night, trying to figure out what was the right 
decision to make and it all came to me. I wanted 
a future for myself, I wanted to live a better life. A 
life without pressure and a life without fake friends. 
And so I decided to choose my studies over them. 
And since that day they never ever spoke to me, 
all they could do was to just spread rumours about 
me, which I didn’t care because I knew that what 
they were saying about me was not true at all. To 
show that I had made the right decision, I passed 
with flying colours at the end of the year. And those 
people whom I thought were my bright and smart 
friends failed at the end of the year. And of course I 
eventually had to make new friends, friends who are 
hard working as I am, friends with goals and passion 
like me, friends to stick with me through thick and 
thin. And indeed I did find those friends. Them 
coming along made me an even better person.  
A person who knew the differences between right 
and wrong, a person who never hesitated to make 
the right decision, and a person who never changed 
his/ her personality in order to achieve or gain 
something in life, a person who knew what needed 
to be done and how to do it. And lastly a leader of 
his/ her life who allowed people to know what he/ 
she wanted them to know about his or her life.

The lesson here is to believe in yourself, never 
stay in a comfort zone, explore life, take risks have 
a very high self-esteem, don’t change your good 
personality in order to gain or achieve something in 
life, be yourself, stay true to yourself and always walk 
the right path.
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GET Phase: 1st Runner Up
Name: Tshegofatso Motlhabane 

Grade: 9

School: Pace Commercial high school

MY EXPERIENCE WITH PEER PRESSURE

My experiences with peer pressure can be broken 
apart into two separate but simple parts. There is 
the first part; the part that does not pressure me 
as much. I feel just a fraction of pressure and then 
comes the second part; the part that puts me under 
great pressure.

Let me start by taking you through the part with 
very little relevance to me. This is the part of little 
pressure, the part that my mother thinks is typical 
pressure from other children, but it contributes to 
me just as a thought. I guess where you come from 
has great influence on what pressures you or not. 
Many think that the type of bag you have or the 
brand of your phone, would have great pressure 
on children our age but to me it is not a big deal. 
Of course if you the only one in your group with a 
no-name -brand bag, which in this case is me, you 
would feel a little pressure. In almost a split second, 
I am relieved off the pressure as we have moved 
from that, to the next thing that interests us. That 
pressure I had for two minutes’ prior is now nothing 
more than just a wish that amounts to nothing.

Now, the part that is of great pressure can be 
discussed. The problematic peer pressure that has 
to do with being “cool” and matters of appearance. 
Although this may sound really petty, what puts me 
under great pressure is how I look. You get the girls 
that everyone like with this cute nails, the glossiest 

lip-gloss and the beautiful hair-do’s and for some 
reason I just want to mimic them. Oh, what pressure 
it is keeping up!

Although how I appear comes second to this that 
I am to mention, it is a big factor. What comes first 
is what defined as the “in thing”. Keeping up with 
this is something that I can say, is one of the hardest 
thing that man has been subjected to. It would be 
easier if I give you are summary of what my situation 
is, that drives me to make the statement I made 
above. Long-story short, I have an almost strict 
mother who wants rational reasoning behind many 
things I request. Back to the term, “in thing”. This 
term can be used across various categories. Let me 
name a few, music, activities, fashion and language. 
Can you imagine keeping up with all that, not to 
mention it is only a portion of all the pressure  
I experience. 

Lastly, my experience with my friend, peer pressure 
is one that makes me feel like plucking my hair out. 
The pressure of wanting to do stuff but there are 
restrictions. My friends are constantly engaging in 
adventurous and exiting activities which I always 
listen in the conversations and there goes the stories 
of how I will join them. I am convinced my mother 
has heard all stories under the sun. All these things 
that pressure me may sound petty but to many 
children my age. They are a reality we face and are 
relatable to many.

GET Phase: 2ndRunner Up
Name: Khauhelo Mosile 

Grade 7

School: Nampo Combined School

MY FAVOURITE SEASON

Spring is my favourite season. The new beginning 
of life and nature on the earth’s surface. The flowers 
start blooming and trees grow beautiful green 
leaves. Trees grow fruits that gives human vitamins 
and minerals that make a human live healthy, gives 
a healthy living life. All of the colours, beautiful and 
filter this world. Red, blue, purple, yellow and more. 
Many colours are here in this Earth.

You would want to go out with friends and buy 
delicious Ice Cream. Going to the park to relax, 
watching children play and enjoying the sunny 
weather. It feels nice when it is spring because 
everything is beautiful around the world. What a 
beautiful season! You see bees on the flowers too. 
I would just build a tree house, down there you 
would see beautiful flowers with amazing colours 
of the world. Even the next day you enjoy rolling 
on the green leaves of the grass. Seeing such a nice 
land you would want to stay there forever. When 
the wind is cool, you play for the rest of the day. I 
feel happy, even more excited with my friends. You 
would just want to take your time a think about this 
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season. You would want to wear freely like spring 
clothes. Beautiful dresses and even the garden has 
a nice flowers and good fertile soil, why? Because 
spring shows us the beauty of this world, how world 
is beautiful.

In spring you can have a nice juice, eat fruits and 
having a nice picnic at a garden surrounded by all 
flowers. Drawing butterflies or flowers just to have 
fun. You can give a person you love flowers as a 
gift and the nice part is the fragrance of the flower. 
The sunny days, the weather and having fun. Taking 
care of the flowers makes the flowers fresh. You can 
see birds such as parrots. Colours are everywhere. 
There’s no place that doesn’t have a colour and 
spring make them more beautiful. The most 
beautiful in this world.

FET Phase: WINNER
Name: Lukhanya Sikolisi 

Grade 12 

Thandokhulu High School

CAN TECHNOLOGY REPLACE A TEACHER 

IN THE CLASSROOM? 

Over the years the presence of technology has 
grown quite significantly in our lives. This maybe 
because not only does it save time but it is also 
makes everyday activities much easier compared 
to what it was in the past. From household chores 
to banking, it is no secret that technology is exactly 
what the doctor ordered. 

The importance of education is preached each and 
everyday. It will play a huge role in people’s lives for 
generations and generations to come. This is why 
the government tries to improve learning conditions 
by all means possible. The latest change being the 
incorporation of technology in the classroom. This 
has seen the existence of chalkboards coming to an 
end and projectors being used as a replacement. 
It has further gone to a point where it has even 
considered unnecessary for learners to carry 
books and pens to school as they would be using 
computers and iPads.

With Technology, learners are exposed to other 
learning environments besides the classroom. They 
can stream live lessons and watch experiments. This 
technique will also help learners who understand 
work through visuals and will also expose the whole 
classroom to different methods of learning and 
studying. With computers, the learners just login, 
open a file and read. They also take online tests after 

finishing a certain topic they can also see their marks 
seconds after submitting their online test.

On the other hand, teachers play an important role 
in every learner’s life. They are more than just a 
teacher, they are parents, mentors and are always 
there when they are needed. To other learners, 
school is an escape from violent backgrounds. A 
place others can find solace in what is home without 
the parents. Teaching is an everlasting profession 
because as the population grows, more people will 
need to be educated. Teachers motivate, encourage 
and make learners believe in themselves and that 
they can be successful in all their endeavours. A lot 
of prominent businessmen and successful figures 
went to school before the time of technology and 
were taught by teachers.

Learners cannot be fully trusted with technology. 
They will need constant monitoring with regards to 
their online activities and that is when teachers are 
needed. Teenagers are always on social media and 
posting things that might destroy their reputation or 
that of another person. When parents are struggling 
as it is with children spending too much time on 
their cellphones and computer, wont it be even 
worse if they also gain access to these even  
at school?

Truth is, no matter how much technology can make 
things easier. It will never prevail the importance of 
teachers in classrooms or in the lives of learners. Not 
only are they nation builder through their hard work 
but also play a crucial part in the lives of learners.
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FET Phase: 1st Runner Up
Name: Lufuno Ratshedana 

Grade 12 

Pace Commercial High School

THE MOST DIFFICULT PART ABOUT 
SCHOOL.

My name is Lufuno Ratshidana and I have been 
schooling for as long as I remember. Talk about all 
those early mornings I cried over waking up so early. 
Well, I cannot really say that much has changed. 
Uunlike primary school where my biggest worries 
were early mornings, lost socks and separating from 
my friends after school; secondary school became a 
real wake-up call and confusing to say the least. 

When I got to high school, in grade 8, my teacher 
would always talk about matric. At that moment 
I would ask myself why he was getting ahead of 
himself and getting so serious? But little did I know 
that it was around the corner, literally around the 
corner. It really felt like blinking three times. So let 
me open up to my world and tell you what I think 
the most difficult part about school is…

Firstly, the pressure to get the best marks and better 
than the last term because before I knew that I was 
schooling for myself I thought it was to impress my 
parents and those little moments that my report 
card was pulled out for the visitors. And then came 
the time when I have to compete with my friends in 
class for the best marks, frienemies if you ask me! It’s 
not easy. 

Now can I talk about the cellphones and this 
monster called data which was non-existent or 

infamous when my parents were my age. How 
will they ever understand? I mean my uncle calls 
facebook whatsapp. The cellphones are not allowed 
in the classroom or at school for that matter but me 
and my friends can’t seem to be able to leave them 
at home. We get into a lot of trouble some times.

The peer pressure and boys – and on top of all that 
you have to bring your A game to the classroom. 
At this point in time I must say that the attention 
and hanging with the boys is kind of cool but we 
are constantly reminded of the consequences of 
engaging in more than a handshake with them. 
The subject called Life Orientation tries to educate 
us about such things but over the years we have 
seen some oops moments where my school going 
friends get pregnant and give birth to children and 
opportunities get scratched off the priority list. Sad 
but life has to go on. 

The bullying that happens at school is enough to 
make one drop out all because of a few clowns who 
want to be the cool group. It is so bad because other 
children don’t enjoy school anymore.

Then comes scary MATRIC… The excitement and 
challenges involved! The moments and realities 
of having to apply for university and have no idea 
what you want to study in the next coming year. The 
university scorecards and the school fees in those 
university booklets. I ask myself how my parents will 
pay such expensive fees but both my parents are 
optimistic and supportive, always talking about how 
God provides. 

The matric dance, shopping and trying to look best! 
Have you ever seen how those American movies 

portray prom??? It’s like the last thing you will do on 
earth, fairy-tale vibes. 

In conclusion am actually very glad I had to tell 
you about my schooling experience although I had 
to summarize it because I could go on all day and 
night. As much as there are so many difficulties in 
school and being a teenager, I certainly know that 
education is my one-way ticket to a better life and 
out of poverty. 
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FET Phase: 2ndRunner Up
Name: Kuhle Mente 

Grade 12 

ThandoKhulu high School 

MY EXPERIENCES WITH PEER PRESSURE

We grow up and do things we vowed to never do. 
We give in to temptations that leave us bruised 
and without purpose. I grew up in a church family. 
Having a pastor for a father, he always preached 
to me about how evil friends are. So as you can 
imagine I spent all my days at church. I never really 
had friends to call my own. That was before I got 
to high school of course. It was then that I met 
these two amazing people who I could finally call 
my friends. Or so I thought! Anyway we were close 
and did everything together. By everything I mean 
everything that you could possibly think of  
and imagine.

This was all new to me. I was so used to being a 
loner, now that I was part of a group it felt great. I 
finally had a sense of belonging. My friends were like 
the sisters I got to choose for myself. I swore they 
were heaven sent. I was so convinced that they were 
the angels that my father said looked after me. Until 
one day that I realised that they were different from 
the angels my father preached about. They were 
angels in black. They were angels of the darkness. 
They proposed that we go to a night club. Although 
I was hesitant at first but they kept pushing the issue 
until I finally gave into the suggestion. 

Partying became a habit that led to me ignoring 
my studies. I was so eager to satisfy my friends and 
their selfish needs knowing very well that the drugs, 
partying and driving around with older men was not 
what I stood for. But I thought what I had with them 
was special and being the inexperienced kid they 
would groom me up to be cool.

I did everything to keep them happy at the expense 
of my own happiness. During the day it was all fun 
and games but came the evening I would drown in 
my own tears. I had identity issues and developed a 
low self-esteem. I battled with voices in my head. I 
felt like an embarrassment, I felt that I had shamed 
my father, family and the congregation. I became 
suicidal. The thoughts that crept into my mind… 
A voice inside me said let’s do it, take away all the 
pain and misery that you feel upon your heart. Set 
yourself free. Let’s leave the world behind with all its 
fortunes that were destined for you. Happiness and 
love will never find you. So go on and take a pill or 
two. No, actually take the whole satchet. 

That’s how you’ll get to be free. In the grave with 
no emotions at all. I had lost purpose. Once more 
I felt out of place. I felt lonely while surrounded by 
millions of loved one. I felt like I was in a dark hole 
and didn’t know to get out of it. I felt as though not 
even prayer could save me. My eyes were now open 
to the cruelty of friends. Oh how I wish I had listened 
to my father. Through all my experiences with peer 
pressure I realised that regrets and mistakes are 
memories made. Temptations can be resisted.



Press play 

to watch 

Our Story 
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The financial statements have been audited by our external auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 

and are in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act 2008. These annual 

financial statements have been prepared by Enathi Singqumba.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Adopt-a-School Foundation NPC for the year ended 30 June 2018.

1. Nature of business

 The Foundation is incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of South Africa. The Foundation’s main activity is to assist schools in need by mobilising resources from individuals and companies willing to 

invest in the development of South Africa’s future human capital.

2.  Review of financial results and activities

 The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have 

been applied consistently compared to the prior year.

 

 The operating results and state of affairs of the Foundation are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

 The Foundation recorded a total comprehensive loss for the year ended 30 June 2018 of R 4 068 268 (2017: Loss R 1 224 387).

 Financial Ratios

 Liquidity Ratio
 The current ratio is a ratio that measures the Foundation’s ability to pay short-term obligations. To gauge this ability, the current ratio considers the current total assets of the Foundation (both liquid and 

illiquid) relative to the Foundation’s current total liabilities.

   2018  2017

Current Ratio –  Total Current Assets  =  18 670 936  31 557 782

 Total Current Liabilities   15 611 938  24 079 674

  =  1.19 1.31

 

 The current ratio has decreased from 2017 to 2018, however the organisation has the ability to pay its debt obligations over the next 12 months.

 Solvency Ratio
 A key metric used to measure the Foundation’s ability to meet its debt and other obligations. The solvency ratio indicates whether the Foundation’s cash flow is sufficient to meet its short-term and long-

term liabilities. Debt equity ratio as indicated in note 1.5 is 0% as the Foundation has no long term debt.
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3.  Going concern
 The directors believe that the Foundation has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going 

concern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the Foundation is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The 

directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Foundation. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements 

or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Foundation.

4.  Share capital

 There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

5.  Directorate

 The directors in office during the year are as follows:

 Directors  Changes
 Matamela Cyril Ramaphosa
 Donné Nicol
 Thokoana James Motlatsi
 Ntjantja Ned 
 Helena Dolny
 Sydney Seolonyane
 Griffiths Zabala  (Resigned 28th November 2017)
 Steven Lebere
 Mshiyeni Belle
 Yaganthrie Ramiah
 Silas Mashava
 Yvonne Themba
 Rebone Malatji
 Eric Ratshikhopha
 Lucky Moeketsi
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6.  Secretary
 The Foundation secretary is: Sade Lekana.

 Business address:  18 Acacia Road

    Chislehurston

    Sandton

    Johannesburg,

    Gauteng

7.  Auditors
 PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

8.  Events after the reporting period

 The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial period and up to the date of signing these financial statements that warrants adjustment or disclosure.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements which conform to International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and fairly present the state of affairs of the Adopt-a-School Foundation as at the end of the financial year, and net income and cash flows for that period.

It is the responsibility of the independent auditors to report on the fair presentation of the financial statements.

The directors are ultimately responsible for the internal controls. Management enables the directors to meet these responsibilities. Standards and systems of internal controls are designed and implemented by 

management to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial statements in terms of IFRS and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability for the Foundation’s assets. 

Accounting policies supported by judgements, estimates and assumptions which comply with IFRS are applied on a consistent and going concern basis. Systems and controls include the proper delegation of 

responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties.

Based on the information and explanations given by management, the directors are of the opinion that the accounting controls are adequate and that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the 

financial statements in accordance with IFRS and maintaining accountability for the Foundation’s assets and liabilities. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any breakdown in the 

functioning of these controls, resulting in material loss to the Foundation, has occurred during the year and up to the date of this report. The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Foundation has 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements of the Foundation for the year ended 30 June 2018, prepared in accordance with IFRS, which are set out on pages 61 to 89 were approved by the board of directors on 27 September 2018 

and are signed on its behalf by:

………………………………………    ………………………………..

CHAIRMAN      DIRECTOR

Matamela Cyril Ramaphosa     Steven Lebere
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ADOPT-A-SCHOOL FOUNDATION NPC

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Adopt-a-School Foundation NPC (the Foundation) as at 30 June 2018, and its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

What we have audited
Adopt-a-School Foundation NPC’s financial statements set out on pages 61 - 89 comprise:

•  the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018

•  the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

•  the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

•  the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

•  the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable 

to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 

performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B).

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act of South Africa and the Statement of responsibility by the board of 

directors. Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South 

Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.

Director: KJ Dikana

Registered Auditor

Sunninghill

27 September 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Figures in Rands Notes 2018 2017

Non-current assets  4 855 317 5 704 475

Property, plant and equipment 2 499 750 572 381

Equity-linked instruments 3 3 100 000 1 400 000

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 3 2 455 567 3 732 094

Current assets  18 670 936 31 557 782

Trade and other receivables 4 4 885 270 2 974 106

Cash and cash equivalents 5 13 785 666 28 583 676

  24 726 253 37 262 257

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity  9 114 315 13 182 583

Members interest  5 858 974 5 858 974

Retained earnings   3 255 341 7 323 609

Current liabilities  15 611 938 24 079 674

Trade and other payables 6 3 121 582 890 616

Provisions 7 - 2 039 793

Deferred revenue 8 12 490 356 21 149 265

  24 726 253 37 262 257
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Figures in Rands Notes 2018 2017

Revenue 9 78 996 372 64 600 378

Other income 10 - 650 000

Administration and project expenses 11 (84 897 318) (68 944 176)

- Administration Expenses  12 246 761 9 405 869

- Project Expenses  72 650 557 59 538 307

Loss before tax  (5 900 946) (3 693 798)

Finance Income  1 312 085 1 480 213

Other (loss)/gain 12 (520 593) 989 198

Other comprehensive income  - -

Total comprehensive Loss for the year  (4 068 268) (1 224 387)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Figures in Rands 

 Retained Members  Total 

 Earnings Interest Equity

Balance at 30 June 2016 8 547 996 5 858 974 14 406 970

Loss for the year (1 224 387) - (1 224 387)

Balance at 30 June 2017 7 323 609 5 858 974 13 182 583

Loss for the year (4 068 268) - (5 268 268)

Balance at 30 June 2018 3 255 341 5 858 974 7 914 315
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Figures in Rands Notes 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

  (14 852 453) (7 484 620)

Cash generated from operating activities 13 (16 151 103) (8 964 833)

Interest received  1 298 650 1 480 213

Cash flows from investing activities

  (42 677) (118 941)

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 2 (42 677) (118 941)

Cash Flows from financing activities  - -

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  (14 895 130) (7 603 561)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  28 583 676 36 432 209

Effects of currency translation on cash and cash equivalents 12 97 120 (244 972)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  13 785 666 28 583 676
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Accounting Policies
 The principal accounting policies which have been applied in preparing the Foundation’s annual financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, 

unless otherwise stated.

1.2  Basis of Preparation

 The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) 

and in the manner required by the Companies Act No 71. of 2008 of South Africa.

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost convention, as modified for revaluation of land and buildings, the available-for-sale 

financial assets, other financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) shown at fair value.

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 

accounting policies at the Foundation.

 The Foundation’s financial statements are presented in South African Rands, unless otherwise stated, which is the Foundation’s presentation and functional currency. The Foundation is incorporated and 

domiciled in South Africa.

1.3  New Standards and Interpretations

 In the current period, the Foundation has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the period ended 30 June 2018 and that are relevant to its operations:

International Financial Reporting Standards and amendments issued and effective for 30 June 2018 year-end

Name of Standard Effective date Brief Narration of Standard Impact

Amendments to IAS 

1,’Presentation of financial 

statements’ disclosure initiative

1 January 2017 In December 2015 the IASB issued amendments to clarify guidance in IAS 1 on materiality and 

aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of 

accounting policies.

It is unlikely that the amendment 

will have a material impact on the 

company’s annual financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 16,

‘Property, plant and equipment’ 

and IAS 38,’Intangible assets’,

on depreciation and

amortisation.

1 January 2017 In this amendment the IASB has clarified that the use of revenue based methods to calculate the 

depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes 

the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits 

embodied in the asset. The IASB has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an 

inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an 

intangible asset.

It is unlikely that the amendment 

will have a material impact on the 

company’s annual financial statements.

65
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1.3  New Standards and Interpretations (cont.)
 

International Financial Reporting Standards and amendments issued and effective for 30 June 2018 year-end

Name of Standard Effective date Brief Narration of Standard Impact

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments 

(2009 &2010)

• Financial liabilities

• De-recognition of financial 

instruments

• Financial assets

General hedge accounting

1 January 2018 This IFRS is part of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 addresses classification and measurement of 

financial assets and replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in IAS 39 with a single model 

that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value.

The IASB has updated IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ to include guidance on financial liabilities and de-

recognition of financial instruments. The accounting and presentation for financial liabilities and for 

derecognising financial instruments has been relocated from IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and 

measurement’, without change, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or 

loss.

It is unlikely that the 

amendment will have a 

material impact on the 

company’s annual financial 

statements.

IFRS 16 – Leases 1 January 2019 Leases – After ten years of joint drafting by the IASB and FASB they decided that lessees should be required 

to recognise assets and liabilities arising from all leases (with limited exceptions) on the balance sheet. Lessor 

accounting has not substantially changed in the new standard.

The model reflects that, at the start of a lease, the lessee obtains the right to use an asset for a period of time 

and has an obligation to pay for that right. In response to concerns expressed about the cost and complexity to 

apply the requirements to large volumes of small assets, the IASB decided not to require a lessee to recognise 

assets and liabilities for short-term leases (less than 12 months), and leases for which the underlying asset is of 

low value (such as laptops and office furniture).

A lessee measures lease liabilities at the present value of future lease payments. A lessee measures lease assets, 

initially at the same amount as lease liabilities, and also includes costs directly related to entering into the lease. 

Lease assets are amortised in a similar way to other assets such as property, plant and equipment. This approach 

will result in a more faithful representation of a lessee’s assets and liabilities and, together with enhanced 

disclosures, will provide greater transparency of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed.

One of the implications of the new standard is that there will be a change to key financial ratios derived from a 

lessee’s assets and liabilities (for example, leverage and performance ratios).

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17, ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15, 

‘Operating Leases – Incentives’ and SIC 27, ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of 

a Lease’.

It is unlikely that the 

amendment will have a 

material impact on the 

company’s annual financial 

statements.
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1.4  Significant Judgements and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
 The Foundation determines residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. A process of estimation is required to estimate the residual value at year-end.

 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
 Useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Management determines the useful lives of assets by taking into account the age of the asset, the physical condition and the technological 

obsolescence.

 
 Estimation equity linked instruments

 Detailed information about the estimates and judgements is included in note 3 together with information about the basis of calculation for the investment.

 Residual values
 The company determines residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. A process of estimation is required to estimate the residual value at year-end.

1.5  Capital Risk

 The Foundation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide benefits for to the Foundation’s stakeholders and to 

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

 

 The capital structure of the Foundation consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position. There are no externally imposed capital requirements. There 

have been no changes to what the Foundation manages as capital and the strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year.

 Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position

 During 2018, the Foundation’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2017, was to maintain the gearing ratio of 0%

    2018 2017

    R R

Total borrowings    - -

 

Less cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)    13 785 666 28 583 676

Net Debt    (13 785 666) (28 583 676)

Total equity    9 114 315 13 182 583

Gearing ratio    0% 0%



68

ADOPT-A-SCHOOL FOUNDATION NPC

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2002/029810/08

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.6  Financial Risk Management
 The Foundation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Foundation seeks to minimise potential 

adverse effects on financial performance of the Foundation. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, interest rate risk, credit risk, and investing excess liquidity.

 All investments of the Foundation are in line with the Adopt-a-School Foundation investment policy. The policy aims to manage investment risk and optimise investment returns within manageable risk 

parameters.

 The objectives of this investment policy are to ensure that:

 •  Funds are invested in prudent investments only.

 •  Acceptable returns are achieved.

 •  Risks to Adopt-a-School are minimised.

 •  Donors have comfort that funds are prudently invested to meet Adopt-A-School objectives.

 •  Reporting is adequate.

 
 A. Credit Risk

 Credit risk is managed by the Foundations management. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, including outstanding receivables and 

committed transactions. Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions.

 

 Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

    2018 2017

    R R

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired:

Gross maximum exposure    15 517 230 31 311 039

Cash and cash equivalents    13 785 666 28 583 676

Accounts receivable    1 731 564 2 727 363

There are no offsets to the gross maximum exposure.
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1.6  Financial Risk Management (continued)

 B. Liquidity Risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by 

delivering cash or another financial asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the 
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

 The Foundation manages the liquidity risk inherent in the above maturity analysis of financial liabilities by ensuring that the Foundation has 
financial assets available that will mature at approximately the same time as the financial liabilities. The Foundation also does not accept 
funding terms that are shorter than the lock-in period of the investment. The Foundation holds deposits with banking institutions to meet liquidity 
needs The following contractual maturity of liabilities on undiscounted basis is disclosed:

2018 R R R R R

 Redeemable Maturing Maturing Maturing

Financial liabilities on demand within within in more than

At amortised cost (open ended) 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total

Trade and other payables - 3 121 582 - - 3 121 582

2017 R R R R R

 Redeemable Maturing Maturing Maturing

Financial liabilities on demand within within in more than

At amortised cost (open ended) 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total

Trade and other payables - 890 616 - - 890 616
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1.6  Financial Risk Management (continued)
 C. Market Risk

 Interest Rate Risk

 The Foundation’s interest rate risk arises from short-term deposits. The Foundation manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating as well as fixed interest rates. At the reporting date the interest 

rate profile of the Foundation’s interest-bearing financial instruments was

Variable rate Instruments    2018  2017

    R R

Cash and cash equivalents    13 785 666 28 583 676

 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/decreased profit and loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all variables, in particular foreign 

currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for all years presented:

Variable rate Instruments    2018  2017

    R R

Profit 100bp increase    137 856 285 836

Loss 100bp decrease    (137 856) (285 836)

 Price Risk
 The risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those 

changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

 The Foundation is exposed to price risk associated with equity securities because of investments held by the Foundation and classified in the statement of financial position as either equity linked 

instruments or as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

 The Foundations exposure to price risk is outlined below:

Variable rate Instruments    2018  2017

    R R

Equity linked instruments    3 100 000 1 400 000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    2 455 567 3 732 094

    5 555 567 5 132 094

 There are no offsets to the gross maximum exposure.
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1.6  Financial Risk Management (continued)

 Foreign Exchange Risk
 The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 

Foundation has a bank account outside South Africa and is thus exposed to foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the British 
pound sterling (GBP). Based on the minimal fluctuation of the British Pound Sterling against the South African rand management does not 
proactively manage this risk as the exposure is not significant.

 At 30 June 2018, if the currency had weakened 1% with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been R 5 312 (2017: R 17 
214) lower as a result of foreign exchange losses on translation of cash and cash equivalents denominated in a foreign currency.

 Exchange rate used for conversion of foreign items were
 GBP  18.07 (2017: 17.02)

1.7  Property, Plant and Equipment

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Foundation, and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the items. Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part 

of, or service it. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 

item will flow to the Foundation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or 

loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

 Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its 

estimated residual value, using the straight-line method. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at 

the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held-for-sale or derecognised.

 Item    Average useful life

 IT equipment   3 years

 Motor vehicles   5 years

 Office equipment   3 years

 The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for 

prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Impairment tests are 

performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher 

than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount. An item of property, plant and 

equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. Any gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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1.8  Financial Instruments
 Classification

 The Foundation classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
 •  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost,

 •  loans and receivables,

 Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition.

 Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, loans to company companies, amounts owing 

by and to company companies.

 Trade and other receivables, loans to company companies, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts owing by company companies are classified as loans and receivables.

 Trade and other payables and amounts owing to company companies are classified as financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

 The Foundation classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the 

contractual arrangement.

 

 Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Foundation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised 

on the trade-date - the date on which the Foundation commits to purchase or sell the instrument. Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement
 

 Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

 De-recognition
 

 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Foundation has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 

of ownership.

 Financial liabilities (or a part of a financial liability) are removed from its statements of financial position when, and only when, they are extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged, cancelled or expired.
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1.8  Financial Instruments (continued)
 Impairment of financial assets

 The Foundation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or company of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a company of financial 

assets is impaired and impairment losses are recognised only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss 

event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or company of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

 Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a company of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the 

probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in 

arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

 For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit 

losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate of measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical 

expedient, the Foundation may measure impairment on the basis of the instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement 

in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

 Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is determined are disclosed in note 3.

 Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 4.

1.9  Equity-Linked Instruments

 Equity linked instruments are classified as derivatives.

 A derivative is a financial instrument that derives its value from an underlying variable, which requires little or no initial investment and is settled at a future date. All derivative instruments are accounted 

for at fair value through profit or loss.

 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at the fair value on the date on which they are entered into and, are subsequently re-measured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised 

in the statement of comprehensive income. They are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when negative.
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1.10 Trade and Other Receivables
 Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is 

measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

 The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is 

uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited.

1.11  Cash and Cash Equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments 

with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 

are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.12  Trade and Other Payables

 Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due 

within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

 Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.13  Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Foundation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle 

the obligation and the amount of the provision can be reliably measured or estimated.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assumptions on the time value of money and 

the risks specific to each liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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1.14  Revenue Recognition
 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the Foundation’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax. The 

entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of 

the entities activities as described below.

 Revenue consists of the following donations split in the following classifications:

 •  Project Revenue

 •  Anchor Revenue

 •  Fundraising Revenue

 Project revenue arises from donations from various donors and is used to fund specific projects.

 Anchor and Fundraising revenue are donations received for non-specific projects and are used to cover operating expenses.

1.15  Employee Benefits

 The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical 

care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

 The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence 

occurs. The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  Property, Plant and Equipment
Figures in Rands  Motor  Office IT  

  vehicles equipment equipment Total

  R R R R

Year ended 30 June 2018
 

Carrying amount as at 1 July 2017  412 251 548 159 582 572 381

Additions  - - 42 677 42 677

Disposals  - - - -

Depreciation charge  (19 439) (548) (95 321) (115 308)

Carrying amount as at 30 June 2018  392 812 - 106 938 499 750

At 30 June 2018

Cost  2 156 783 93 058 605 366 2 855 207

Accumulated depreciation  (1 763 971) (93 058) (498 428) (2 355 457)

Net book amount  392 812 - 106 938 499 750

Year ended 30 June 2017

Carrying amount as at 1 July 2016  787 097 6 216 147 108 940 421

Additions  - - 118 941 118 941

Disposals  - - - -

Depreciation charge  (374 846) (5 668) (106 467) (486 981)

Carrying amount as at 30 June 2017  412 251 548 159 582 572 381

At 30 June 2017 

Cost  2 370 604 93 058 914 702 3 378 364

Accumulated depreciation  (1 958 353) (92 510) (755 120) (2 805 983)

Net book amount  412 251 548 159 582 572 381
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3 Financial Instruments

 Financial Instruments by category

  30 June 2018 

  Financial Assets Financial

 Loans and  at fair value Liabilities at 

 receivables through profit amortised 

  and loss costs Total

 R R R R

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables 4 885 270 - - 4 885 270

Equity-linked Instrument - 3 100 000 - 3 100 000

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - 2 455 567 - 2 455 567

Cash and cash equivalents 13 785 666 - - 13 785 666

Total 18 670 936 5 555 567 - 24 226 503

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities   3 121 582 3 121 582

Total   3 121 582 3 121 582

  30 June 2017 

  Financial Assets Financial

 Loans and  at fair value Liabilities at 

 receivables through profit amortised 

  and loss costs Total

 R R R R

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables 2 974 106   2 974 106

Equity-linked Instrument  1 400 000  1 400 000

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss  3 732 094  3 732 094

Cash and cash equivalents 28 583 676   28 583 676

Total 31 557 782 5 132 094  36 689 876

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities   890 616 890 616

Total   890 616 890 616
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3 Financial Instruments (continued)

 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Figures in Rands    2018  2017

    R R

Unlisted securities

- OTGC Investments     2 455 567  3 732 094

- Sandvik Mining (Equity Linked)     3 100 000  1 400 000

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in ‘other (losses)/gains – net’ in the income statement (note 12)

 Background for Investments

 OTGC Investments
In July 2014, Adopt-a-School Foundation subscribed for a 3% stake in OTGC for R2 008 716. OTGC is an independent bulk liquid storage provider in South Africa. The shareholding is made up as follows: 

Oiltanking Holding a 46% stake, Calulo Petrochemicals holding a 20.5% stake, Adopt-a-School Foundation holding a 3% stake, with the remaining 30.5% shareholding being held by Grindrod. Adopt-a-

School previously held an effective 10% interest in Grindrod SA Proprietary Limited and restructured their shareholding through the Consortium at listed company level and also received this investment 

as a donation as part of the unbundling process.

 Sandvik Mining
In April 2014, Adopt-a-School entered into a Black Economic Empowerment transaction with Sandvik Mining RSA Proprietary Limited (“Sandvik Mining”). The acquisition of the effective 12.5% interest 

in Sandvik Mining RSA is classified as an equity linked instrument and the fair value movement is recognised through profit or loss. The BEE Shareholders are not exposed to the risks and rewards 

that a normal ordinary shareholder would be exposed to as they will only receive trickle dividends while the preference shares are outstanding and will only be able to share in the residual when the 

preference share funding is fully repaid. Therefore, in substance, the BEE Shareholders are not exposed to any down side risk on the investment and will only enjoy potential upside benefit in the form of 

dividends and fair value appreciation.

 Sandvik Mining – Outstanding Preference share balance
Figures in Rands    2018  2017

Reconciliation of preference share balance:

At 1 July    (100 973 256) (91 869 959)

Cumulative Interest    (9 733 079) (15 245 797)

Less: Dividend to redeem interest and preference share balance    - 6 142 500

Balance as at 30 June    (110 706 335) (100 973 256)

Refer to note 10 for the dividend breakdown
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3 Financial Instruments (continued)

 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 (Level 1).

• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

 (Level 2).

• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Foundation’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at 30 June 2018.

a)  Quoted   

 Prices in Significant Significant

Recurring fair value Active Observable Unobservable 

measurements Markets Inputs Inputs 

at 30 June 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 R R R R

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL 

Sandvik Mining - - 3 100 000 3 100 000

OTGC Investments - - 2 455 567 2 455 567

Total Financial Assets - - 5 555 567 5 555 567

 Quoted   

 Prices in Significant Significant

Recurring fair value Active Observable Unobservable 

measurements Markets Inputs Inputs 

at 30 June 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 R R R R

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL 

Sandvik Mining - - 1 400 000 1 400 000

OTGC Investments - - 3 732 094 3 732 094

Total Financial Assets - - 5 132 094 5 132 094
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3 Financial Instruments (continued)

 Fair value estimation

b)  The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Opening balance 5 132 094

Gain recognised in profit or loss (423 473)

Closing balance 5 555 567

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Opening balance 3 897 924

Gain recognised in profit or loss 1 234 170

Closing balance 5 132 094

c)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitive information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements.

Description
Fair value at

Unobservable 

inputs

Range of Inputs  

(Probability-Weighted average)
Relationship of Unobservable inputs to fair value

2018 2017 2018 2017

Sandvik Mining 
Investment

3 100 000 1 400 000

Share Price 
Volatility

30 -35% 30 -35%

Implied volatilities inferred from market prices of traded 
options with longer terms to maturity and low/high 
moneyness tend to be higher than at the money implied 
volatilities

Risk free-interest 
rate

3.22% 3.22%
Minimal impact to the Fair value for any changes to the risk-
free rate and the dividend yield.

Dividend yield 5% 5%
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3 Financial Instruments (continued)
 
 Fair value estimation

d) Valuation Process

Choice of valuation model

The valuation of the BEE deal requires consideration of both the cash flows arising from and the evolution of the purchased equity and the B Preference Shares. The outstanding balance on the B 

Preference Shares is dependent on the ordinary shareholders’ dividends generated by Sandvik Mining with these dividends depending on the underlying share price at the time they are declared. The 

structure therefore represents a path dependent option. Path dependent options can generally not be valued using traditional option pricing models such as the Black-Scholes formula since they are 

unable to model the evolution of all potential path dependent variables. A typical risk-neutral option valuation approach using Monte Carlo Simulation was applied as it provides the necessary flexibility 

to model the features of the deal with fewer approximations.

e) The main level 3 inputs used by the Foundation are derived and evaluated as follows:

1. Volatility

Since Sandvik Mining is unlisted, we sourced daily, weekly and monthly historical price data for Sandvik Sweden from Bloomberg. We calculated annualised equity volatilities over terms to maturity of 

1 year, 3 year and 5 year periods and identified a range of 30% to 35% as reasonable for the theoretical share price volatility of Sandvik Mining. Implied volatilities inferred from market prices of traded 

options with longer terms to maturity and low/high moneyness tend to be higher than at-the-money implied volatilities. We have taken historical volatility of 32.5% per annum as a crude indication of 

the theoretical at-the-money volatility of Sandvik Mining and consequently used a volatility assumption of 40.0% per annum to approximate a theoretical Fair Value of the BEE deal.

2. Interest rates

Risk-free interest rates were determined from a bootstrapped zero coupon perfect fit swap curve as at 30 June 2018 that we obtained from the Bond Exchange of South Africa. The forward prime curve 

was constructed by applying a fixed spread of 3.15% (NACC) to the swap curve.

3. Dividend yield

A fixed dividend yield of 5.0% per annum was applied. We note that the valuation result is not particularly sensitive to this assumption.
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Figures in Rands    2018  2017

    R R

4.  Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables    1 731 564 2 727 363

VAT Receivable    3 033 736 197 177

Staff loans    103 576 46 819

Other receivables    16 394 2 747

    4 885 270 2 974 106

Fair value of trade and other receivables

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows    2018  2017

Fully performing: 0 - 30 days     -  -

Greater than 30 Days     1 731 564  2 727 363

 

Trade and other receivables impaired

Trade and other receivables greater than 30 days are not considered to be impaired as there is no history of default.

As of 30 June 2018, trade and other receivables of R nil (2017: R nil) were impaired and provided for.

Currencies

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: Rands

5.  Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 
    2018  2017

Cash at bank and in hand    2 398 767 4 722 305

Deposits at call    11 386 899 23 861 371

    13 785 666 28 583 676

The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in the statement of cash flows at the end of the financial year as follows:

Balance as per above    13 785 666 28 583 676

Bank overdrafts    - -

    13 785 666 28 583 676

Term deposits are presented as cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. See note 1.11 for the Foundation other accounting policies on cash and cash 

equivalents.
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Figures in Rands     2018  2017

5.  Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 

Credit quality of bank balances:

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings:

Credit rating (from Fitch Ratings Inc.)     2018  2017

BBB+     13 785 666  28 583 676

6.  Trade and Other Payables
    R  R

Accruals    2 138 883 53 149

Payroll Tax and other statutory liabilities    363 253 197 882

Other Payables1    619 446 639 585

    3 121 582 890 616

1Other payables consist of the following:

Leave pay accrual     619 446  639 585

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

7.  Provisions

Bonus provision    - 2 039 793

Reconciliation of bonus provision:

At 1 July    2 039 793 2 357 485

Created during the year    - 2 039 793

Utilised during the year    (2 039 793) (2 357 485)

Balance as at 30 June    - 2 039 793
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Figures in Rands     2018  2017

    R  R

8.  Deferred Revenue

Projects still in progress    10 686 568 8 691 651

Projects starting in next financial year    1 803 788 12 457 614 

    12 490 356 21 149 265

Reconciliation of deferred revenue:

At 1 July    21 149 265 26 778 457

Funds received    1 803 789 12 457 614

Funds utilised during the year    (10 462 698) (18 086 806)

Balance as at 30 June    12 490 356 21 149 265

Deferred revenue consists of:

- Projects that are still currently in progress.

- Donations received for projects, commencing in 2018/2019 financial year.

9.  Revenue

Anchor Revenue    10 760 170 6 074 667

Fundraising Revenue    6 183 226 8 907 625

Project Related Revenue    62 052 976 49 618 086

    78 996 372 64 600 378

The Foundation has three main revenue streams:

- Anchor revenue is generated from donations received for the Foundation as well as management fees from projects specifically and is used to cover operating expenses.

- Fundraising revenue is due to the following:

 - Table sales and funds received for pledges from fundraising events during 2016/17.

- Project revenue is generated from donations from various donors and is used to fund specific projects.
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Figures in Rands    2018  2017

    R R

10. Other Income

Dividend received    - 650 000

    - 650 000

Adopt-a-School Foundation received a dividend from their investment in Sandvik Mining on the 7th of March 2017, this dividend was declared by Sandvik Mining in their FY2016/2017. The breakdown 

of the dividend received is as follows:

Total dividend declared: Sandvik Mining    - 55 000 000

Dividend attributable to Adopt-a-School Foundation after administration fees    - 6 825 000

Dividend to redeem interest and preference share balance (Note 3)    - 6 142 500

10% dividend declared after admin costs    - 650 000
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Figures in Rands    2018  2017

    R R

11. Expenses
Administration expenses  

Accounting fees    66 021 58 911

Advertising    972 470 404 150

Audit Fees    925 000 838 707

Bank charges    115 185 148 288

Subscriptions & Licencing    - 28 080

Computer expenses    86 262 104 352

Courier and postage    - 19 730

Depreciation    115 308 486 981

Interest paid    96 167 65 278

Fundraising costs    3 535 048 4 167 627

Legal fees    126 856 31 616

Printing and stationery    67 638 45 056

Refreshments    71 271  48 942

Office repairs and maintenance    - 11 697

Staff costs    3 962 629 2 199 882

Staff, board costs and teambuilding    202 100 145 869

Staff training    127 828 196 507

Staff recruitment    251 015 -

Shared expenses    1 525 963 404 196

    12 246 761  9 405 869

 

Project expenses

Insurance    278 813 228 229

Motor expenses    234 818 583 058

Professional fees    234 804 466 287

Project expenses¹    66 578 241 51 626 415

Projects – local travelling²    2 503 100 2 755 565

Fundraising - projects4    - 823 340

Telephone and Fax3    570 073 506 110

Workman’s compensation    - 258 859

Shared expenses    2 056 958 2 290 444

Fraudulent transactions    193 750 -

    72 650 557 59 538 307

Total operating and project expenses    84 897 318 68 944 176
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    R R

11. Expenses (continued)
Project expenses

Expenses that are solely related to the Adopt-a-School projects. These exclude travel, telephone and fax.  

Social and skills development    17 675 403 13 370 323

Infrastructure    27 799 523 16 911 332

Salary and wages    21 103 315 21 344 760

    66 578 241 51 626 415

2Projects –Travel

Accommodation    398 537 467 506

Flights    1 186 190 1 307 058

Petrol    511 095 417 771

Subsistence    407 278  563 230

    2 503 100 2 755 565

3Telephone and Fax

Cell-phone and 3G connectivity    570 073 437 158

Office, telephone and fax    - 68 952

    570 073 506 110

4Fundraising Costs

Fundraising - projects    - 823 340

    - 823 340

Fundraising costs related to ‘Back to School Parties and other fundraising events during 2017/8.
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Figures in Rands    2018  2017

    R R

12.  Other Gains/(Loss)

Fair value gains/(loss) on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

- Sandvik Mining    1 700 000 (400 000)

- OTGC Investment    (1 276 527) 1 634 170

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)    97 120 (244 972)

    (520 593) 989 198

13. Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Loss for the year    (4 068 268) (1 224 387)

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation    115 308 486 981

Interest received    (1 312 085) (1 480 213)

Non – cash interest receivable    13 435 -

Fair value (loss)/profit    (423 473) (1 234 170)

Unrealised profit on foreign exchange    (97 120) 244 972

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in deferred revenue    (8 658 909) (5 629 192)

Decrease/increase in accounts receivable    (1 911 164) 65 830

Decrease/increase in provision for bonus    (2 039 793) -

Decrease/increase in accounts payable    2 230 966 (194 654)

    (16 151 103) (8 964 833)
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14.  Related Parties

 Key management
Key management consists of directors as listed in the directors’ report.

 Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties have been disclosed below.

Dr. Thokoana James Motlatsi is a related party as he is a director of the Foundation.

Donations from director: Dr. Thokoana James Motlatsi     55 000  1 055 000

Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation (CRF) is a related party as there is a common founder between the organisations.

Donations from Cyril Ramaphosa Foundation (CRF)     9 163 197  5 046 285

15. Subsequent Events
No significant events occurred after the reporting period.

16.  Taxation

No Provision has been made for taxation as the Foundation has been approved as a public benefit organisation in terms of Section 30 of the Income Tax Act, and the receipts and accruals are exempt 

from income tax in terms of Section 10(1) (cN) of the Act.

17. Contingencies and Commitments

There are no contingencies and commitments.
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“Part of our approach to teaching has to take into 

consideration the environment we are in and where are 

learners are coming from. And so, we don’t just teach 
for results. We teach for social goals. We address the 

challenges our learners are facing so that they can be part 
of changing their own lives and their communities. 

 – Sonnyboy Mpofu, Principal, Modilati Secondary School
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